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A17-25/1L(FORRESTAL, Jomes V.)

i

The proceedings of the board of investigation, the
proceedings and findings of the board of investigation in revigicn,
and the actions of the convening and reviewing authorities thereon

in the attached case of the late Mr. James V. Forrestal, are
approved.
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and trestment given to Mr. Forrestal during his stay at the
Naval Hospital werse entirely in sccord with modern psychiatrie
principles, and that his death was not due to the regligence,
fault, intent, or inefficiency of any of the physicians, nurses,
or ward personnel concerned in his care.
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Subscribed and sworn at Washington, District of Columbila,

+
this | Y /h day of September, 19,9, before me,

e

) Notary Public

My commission expires i-—— [ 5.‘#- .




~ ditions in which the maintenance of unduly tight,'

~ DR.JOHN C.WHITEHORN
JOHNS HOPKINS HOSPITAL
BALTIMORE, MARYLAND S

210 Northfield P
Baltimore. 10 Md
Sept,+13, 11949, .

Rear b e T 2 BEREEL N
Judge Advocate ‘General of the Navy, WAL
¥avy Department,
Washingten, 25 D,C,

Dear Sir:

The proceedings and findings of the boar

'investigation 5 the case of the late Mister James N.;

Porrestal, with accompanying exhlbits, were deliveredg'

to me by Lt, Comdr, . this morning.:

J

and practice involved,

The first question: In general,
treatment of a depressed patient with auicidal poten-ﬁ ?i
tialities who 1is showing indioatlons of recovery, ia
it proper psychl&tric practice to increase tha range

of the patient's activities and to decrease the "

restrictions and suparvision? ﬂkf"i-w“'w:

with =g senaltive persgon, but there- are clinical coﬁ
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DR.JOHN C.WHITEHORN
. JOHNS HOPKINS HOSPITAL
BALTIMORE, MARYLAND

restrictions may seriously hinder the patient's .

recovexry.

The second question was concerned with the applicau

1 '\u\“

bllity of these general principles to this partwcula i.

case,—whether the condition and progreas ofVMi.”?

Forrestal, as & patlent Justified the relaxation offg
8trict survelllance which apparently mada possible hia
successful suicidal act. Because I have not had the‘

clinical advantage of personal examination of this 8

patient, which is of course the most reliable basi?#g“-
for clinical judgment, I have examined the proceedinga

of the board of investigation with great care, inciuding

the accompanying nursing notes. It is clear thatfthere
'was no tangible fault of hoapit&l care nor nag :
orders, responsible for his suicide, and the 1ssue‘is

clearly whether Dr. i .\&s the respon-*

sible psychiatrist in charge of the: patient's care,

had exercised proper psychiatric Judgment 'in hisldaciaionaf
.as to orders. which involved the ta;ing of oaicul;te”" '
risks. The faotu gathered in. the- board - inveatlg ‘ien
indicate adequately that careful and- proper Judgmenu
was: exercised and that Dr.. Ralnes' deciuiona were

' ‘sensible and;p:oper, )

L Bé




DR.JOHN C.WHITEHORN ;
JOHNS HOPKINS HOSPITAL -
BALTIMORE, MARYLAND

In this connectiocn it is appropriate to poin

that & contrary lina of treatment, involving 8 con‘inuance
af very sharp restriction and supervision, would alao

have involved the taking of risks,—especially riaka of

depressed patientd are particularly liable, and whioh

may deepen and prolong the depression. Furthermore,{-w-h

'y even the strictest nursing restrictionﬂ and:- supervisien
B P e
cannot ccmpletely guarantee against Bulcide, particul&r-;-J

~ly 1f = keen-minded and quick-a cting peraon like

conservative, - restrictive regime, ;Pr;

~ ¥or this he should be commended,

Sincerely yours,::. ., _ %
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I, W , having been duly sworn, do
depose and sayt

That I received my degres,of Doctor of Medicine,
from Jefferson Medlcal College in Philadelphia in 1911; +that I have
been engaged'in the study and practice of psychiatry exclusively since
1913, including service in France in World War I, as Divisional Psychia-
trist to the 28th Division; that I am & Diplomate of the American Board
of Psychiatry and Neurology, Inc. and a former Member of the Boﬁrd'and
ex-fresident; that I have occupied various important psychlatric positions
in the past, including Professorship of Mental and Nefvous Dissases,
Jefferson Medical College, Philadelphia, and Professor of Psychiatry and
Mental Hyglene, Yale Universityj that I am e member and a former President
of the American Psychiatric Assoclation, and a membsr and former Vice-
Presideat of the American Neurological Association, and a member of many
scientific and learned socleties in the Unlted Statss and abroad, including
the % vl Medico-Psychologicul Association of Great Britalny that I am the
author of & number of books and many treatises pertalning to the subject of
psychiiabry; thet my lmportant preseat positions are Professor of Psychiatry
and Chairman of the Depaertment, School of Medicine, University of
Pennsylvania; Professor of Psychiatry, Graduate School of Mediciné,
Univavslty of Pemnsylvania; Consultant and Chief-of-Service, Institute of

the Pennsylvania Hospital, and many other posltions.




B. I further depose and say that I have carefully ex-

amined the proceedings end findings of the Boerd of Investigation in the
case L the late Mr. James V. Forrestal. Included in the examination of
thesc ocuments there wies the testimony of the wvarlous physiciuns who
attended and were in contact with Mr. Forrestal, the testimony of Dr.
*, the corpsmen, all the medical and mursing records,

“the letters, the photographs and, in fact, all the documentary exhibits
pertaining to this case.

Bk : My considered opinion is in complete sccord with
"The: Findiné of Factg". These constitute the final opinion of the Board

of Investigation and concern

(1) The identification of the body of Mr. James V.

i

<t
¥

IAI

Forre

(2) The approximate date of the death of Hr,

Forrestal and the medlcal cause of death;

(3) The review of the behavior of the deceased
durirg his residence in the Bethesda Naval Hospital, and the diagnosis of

his mental condition as "mental depression®;

(4) The review of the treatment and precautions in
the tre:tment of Mr. Forrestel, and an opinion that '"they were within the
area of accepted psychlatric practice and commensuraterwitﬁ the evldent

.status of the patlent at all times";

(5) That in no manner was the death of Mr. Forrestal
due to "intent, fault, negligence or inefficiency of any person or persons

in the Naval Service or comnected therewith®.
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HEADQUARTERS POTQMACARIVER NAVAL COMMAID

UNITED STATES NAVEL GUN FACTORY ~
WASHINGTON, D. C.

RG1/AL17-25(140) N &
Code 22 R s

iSerial Ho.

i The: proceedings and finding, in revision,-of the board
of investigation in the case of the late Mr. James .V, Forrestal,

are approved.
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: , Rear Admiral, U. S. Navy =
Commandant, Potomac River Naval Command

-
“-eé.th'. of Mr."l?.?ames Ve Forrest‘a}l‘.
- ','.‘;%’.:_..:‘_ e -l -



- MATIGMAL NaAVAL MiDICAL CENTER
i T BATHESDA, KHAYTLAND
| IrlLCE OF THE hEDICAL OFFICER IN COMMAND

July 13, 1949

“he proceedings and finding, in revision, of the Board of Investiga-
tion in the foregoing case of the late Mr. James V. Forrestal, are ap-

provad,

G1Z

"
L

b REAR AUMIRAL, EDICAL CORPS, U. S. NAVY,

f MEDICAL 0RFTLCER IN COMAND, NATIONAL NAVAL MEDICAL CENTER,
f BETHESDA, MARYLAND,

SINLOit OFFICER PRUSENT.




gFrgmg The Medical Officer in Command.
iTot Captain

NATIONAL NAVAL MEDICAY CENTER
BETHESDA, MARYIAND
13 July 1949

MC, U. 8. Navy (Ret ) Active,
Senior Member, Board of Investigation, U. S. Naval Hospital,
National Naval Medical Center, Bethesda, Maryland.

Board of Investigation Convened at thth. S.-NavalfHospital,

Subj:
National Waval Medical Center, Bethesda, Maryland, on 23 May
1949 to Imvestigate and Report Upon the Circumstances Attending
the Death of Mr. James V. Forrestal at the U. 8. 'Naval Hospital,
National Naval Medical Center, Bethesda, Maryland.

Encl: (A) Fifth endorsement SecNav to JAG in case of subject investi-

gation.
(B) Sixth endorsement JAG to MOIC dtd 13 July L9 in case of

subject investigation.

11, The record of proceedings of the board of investigation of which you

. are senior member, in the case of Mr. James V. Forrestal, is herewith

:returned tc the board.

2.

" be returned to the convening authority.

Attention is invited to the enclosures wherein it 1s recommended that
the board be reconvened for the purpose of further deliberation with a view
of fixing the time of Mr. Forrestal's death as definitely as possible.

3. The board will reconvene for the purpose stated in the preceding para-
graph. At the conclusian of the proceedings in revision, the record will

~

Rear Admiral, Medical corps, U, 8. Navy,
Medical Officer in Cammand
National Maval Medical Center

Bethesda, Maryland

1mﬁ¢{£{  fﬁ%{{7
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i the tiwe of Mp, ¥

NATTIONAT,: N&VAL MEDICAL CENTER
BETHESDA MARYTAND b
13- JULY: 19&9.

The Board of Investigation reconvened by direction of the éonvening
authority for the purpose of further deliberation with a view of Ffixing
orrestalls death as definitely as possible,

The toard reviewed its ordiginal repart and the endorsements thereon.

In review of the findings of the board it was evident that the phraseclogy
of the first line of paragraph twe under the Finding of Facts stating/that

| the late James V. Forrestal died on or about May 22, 19L9" was not an exact

statement of the facts determined by the board and therefore in agreement

{ with endorsement five this statement is herewith changed to read "That the

late :Iames V. Forrestal died about 1:50 a.m. on Sunday, Mey 22, 19L9."

Captaif
Medical %orps, U.S. Navy (Ret.)

Active, Senior member
" Gigtain ; ) Ei—cgf—

Corps, 9‘3. lavy, member.,

——~

r e -

TNEERERTT Iliech’él
Ourps, H. 872 Na)ér member .
CommAander . =dlca

Carps, U. S. Navy, member,

= -

(e
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tenant Commander -
gedical Corps, U, S, Nayy, member. |

W'
Medicdal Service CorpS' U.S. Navy, {

recorder.
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ADDRESS RLILY 12

OFFICE OF THE HIDGE ADVOC T

AND REFER TO;

JAG: 1

o NAVY DEPARTMENT
OFFICE OF THE JUDGE ADVOCATE GENERAL
WASHINGTON 25, D. C.

13 July 1949

SITH ENDCRSEMERT

From: The Juige Advecate General
kot Medical Officer in Command

Hational Naval Medical Center
Bethesda, Maryland

subject!: Board of Investigation - Death of
James V. Forrestal, civilian;
convened by MOIC, NatNavMedCtr,
Bethesda, Md., (SOP), 22 Masy 1949.

0. Returned, for compliance with paragrarh
% of the preceding endorsement.

Zn, Upon accomplishment, return the Record
i Proceedinzs to the Judge Advocate Genersl via the
Jommandant , Potomac River Naval Command.

Rear Admirsl, U. S. N.

Judge Advocate General of the Navy

-

co:  Comdt., FREC

e



THE SECRETARY OF THE NAVY
WASH INGTON

To: The Judpe Advocate General,

Board of Investigation - Death of James V., FORRESTAL,
civilian; convened by MOIC, NatNavMdCtr, Bethesda, Md,
(Bor), 22 May 1949.

Subiect:

1, Heturnsd.

2. The Secretary of the Navy is of the opinion that
the lansuage in paragraph 2 of the Finding of Facts, dated July 11,
1949, made by the Naval Doard of Investigation appointed to. inquire
inte the suleide of the former Secrefary of Defense, James Forrestal,

is ambi.uous and ill advised in the following particulars;

(a) 1he first line of paragraph 2 under the "Finding
of Facts!! states, Ythat the late James V. Forrestal died on or about
Hay 22, 1949." The record indicates that Mr. Forrestal's body was found
at L:50 a.m., and that he was pronounced dead at 1:55 a.m. This, taken
in conaection with the two words or about!" in the languagse-quoted above,
would indicate that the Board of Investigation could net determine
whether Mr. Forrestal died before midnight or after midnight, and would
at least imply that his whereabouts was not known during that period of
time, with the possiblie deduction from such a statement that he may
have Jumped out of the window before midnight and that fact not have

been lnovm to the staff.,

3. In view of %he above it is recommended that the
recora e raturned to the convenling authority for submission to the
Board ‘or the purpese of further deliberation with a view of fixing
the time of Wr. Torrestal's death as definitely as possible. For
instance, it could be stated he died about 1:50 a.m. on Sunday,

Hay 22, 1949, or whatever would definitely and accurately reflect the
fact a5 found by the Board,




In reply refer to Initiala
and No,

FOURT! HDORSEATHY

for PEACE
oF

Navy DeEPARTMENT

SAVINGS

c OFFICE OF THE CHIEF OF NAVAL OPERATIONS " 1
BONDS

WasgincTON 25, D. C.

-1 JuL 1949

(:lh 1t

Secret:

BoarG of Tnvesulg. ilon — Penth of Jases V. Forrestal,
civilicn; convened wy MILC, patlivviledCuir, Bethesda, Md.,

(BOP], 25 odF 1529,

Forvarded, recomnrmuending apprwal.

S
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Pers-3201 MM Erd -3

.From: The Chief of Naval Personnel. ,
. Pod The Secretary of the Navy, : o
Via: The Chief of Naval Operations.

Subj: Board of Investigation - Death of James V, Forrestall civ1llan,
conve by MOIC, NatNavMedCtr, Bethesda, Md.,. (SOP),

1. Forwarded, recommending approval of the proceedings and findlngs
of the Board of Investigation in the attached case amd ' the. mctions
"of the Convening arnd Reviewing Authorities thereon, subJect ‘to the

remarks of the Convening and Reviewing Authorltles.

P

The Chjef of Naval Personnel




for PEACE]|

ADPRESS YOUR REFLY TO
BUREAU OF MEDICINE ARND SURGERY
NAVY DEPARTMENT, WASIINGTON 28, D, C.

AND REFER TO

BUMED~11~1BP: ami
Pe-2/EN1 '
21 Jwne 1949 :
WASHINGTON 25, D, C., .
End-2 on Record of Proceedings of Board
of Investlgation of May 23, 1949.
(JAG:I:4:WStedn, Al7-25/LL(Forrestal,
Jemes V.) Bnd. #45181 of 7 June 19.9.
To: The Secretary of the Navy i

Via: (1) The Bureau of Naval Personnel
(2) Chlef of Naval Operations

Subj: Board.of Inves. death of James V, Forrestal, civilian conv. by
1'0IC, NatNavMedCtr, Bethesda, Md. (SOP), 22 May 1949.

1. Forwarded, contents noted,

Acting Chisfl of Bureau

Rear Admirég/_(mc) USH




ALDRESS REPLY VO

OFFiCE OF THE JUDGE ADYOCATIL GENENRAL
NAVY DEPARTMENT
AND REFER T
CJAG:I:4:WS: edn .OFHCEOFTHEJUDGEADVOCATEGENERAL
_3,17,_35/1,1,(_1?01.1-95-,5&’ James V. ) WASHINGTON 25, b. C.
. Bnd. 745181

7 June 1949

Eng--1
Ton: - The Secyetary of the Navy
Via: (1) Onief, Bureau of Medicine and Surgery
(2) <onief of Naval Personnel
(3) Chief of Naval Operations.
Subj: T4, of Inves. — Death of James V. FORRESTAL, civilian;

conv, by MOIC, NatWavMedCtr, Bethesda, Md.,{SOP),
22 May 1949.

1. Forwsreed for information.

2. Subjccf to the remarlrs of the convening and reviewlng autherities,
the proceeiings in the attached case and the zctions of the convening
and reviering suthorities thereon are legal.

By direction of the Judge Advocate Genersl:

5
ol




RECORD OF PROCFEDING: IN RRIVISION
of a
DOARD OF INVESTIGATION
Convened at thé
NATIONAL NaVAL MEDICAIL CENTER, ET;ESDA, JMARYLAND,
By order of |

The Medical Cfficer in Command, National Naval Hedical Center, Bethesda,
Maryland.

To inquire into and report upon the circumstances attfending the death of
the late James V. Forrestal, 3

“that occurred on May 22, 1949, at the U. S. Naval Hosp¢ta1 National Naval

ﬁedlcal Center, Bethesda, Maryland,

July 13, 1949
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WASHINGTON, D. C.

RC1/AL17-25(140)
Code B2+ .. :

i5 crisll M, 40074

I

"nvestigation in the attached case,
ing authority thereon, are approveda

| I
‘:L.-//\

Resa

#eath of mr, James V..Forrestal.

HEADQYARTERS POTOMAC RIVER NAVAL/CONMMARD
TTED STATES NAVAL GUN FACTORY

/ - | s (%;W 4] V
T\A / 7”' e 1 CT%WVZW&"{M"“ 4.

ot

| , r/Admiral, U. S. Navy
Commandant,{Potomac River Naval Command

L% JUN184s

6 JUN 1949

The proceedlngs and finding of facte of the boaprd ol
and the action of the conven-
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PLUUTHG o IPACTS.

] J ot the bedy 1oaqu on *the ledge outside of room three sighty-four of
'unal naval edical Center at one-fif'ty a.m.
L ooune flltj—flve.a-m., Sundey, lay 22, 1949, - |

e by ewe pi EhE
- prouuunced cen

Lr

e S Y, g
3 5

L identified am tlwt of the late James V. iorrestal, a paticat on ths |
ropsychiatric Service of the y. §. Haval Hospital, Hatiounsl Naval |
ioal genter, Bethesds, -aryland. . ;

O 3
¥s . %
£ ;

I

B v =% the behavior of the deceased during the periocd of -his stay in the
hosgsital preceding his death was indicative of & mental depression.

]
|
]
]
!
L. ¢ at the trestaent snd precautions in the conduct of the - case were in

sement with accenited psychiatric praotics and commenuurate with the

dent status of the putient at sll Himes. f

5, Cooc khe death wvas uct caused iun any meanper by the intent, Tault,

Jiigence or ineflficlency of any person or persons in the nawval

RO ]

caeigs or connected therewlth.
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EWIURD OF PROCEEDLNGS
of a
BOARD OF IHVESTIGATL.I
Convened at the

A TTOWAL MAVAL IEDICAL CZHIER, BRETUMESDA, -Ie‘mRm.l'FD,

ELV %
By order of

vational laval Liedical Center, Bethesda,
Maryland.
P

Ty din. aire into aand rouert wpon the CiI‘CuIﬂS%j)’{UGS atltending the death of
the late James V.A\Forrestgl,

that.. o .urrad on gy 22, ¥ihe, a% the we S. naval Hospitel, Hational Taval
ladical Centoer, Bethesds, iLaryland.

Tas- i 0 icRl DfTdees ilE dospm®d;

iy 23, lo.




secord ol Mroceedings
of' &
sosrd of Investigation
| convausd ut the
i sational Lawel .edical denter, Sethesda, Liarylandg,
L order of
who o adical UfTicer in vorsunnd, lictional Fawel “ledical {enter, Bethesda,
rarylaod
bouwgron the slrcumsihnnces attending the deeth of
Janas vy, Forrestial
at the U. 5, savwal Hospital, Mational awsl
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NATIONAL NAVAT,MEDICAL CENTER
BETHESDA', "MARYTAND
o Ma.v 19h9

‘Froms: The Medical Officer in Command. ‘

To: Captain Aclpfar A. Marsteller, MC, U.-S. Navy (Ret;) Actlve,
National Naval Medical Center : %
Bethesda, Maryland

’\
- »
i
‘ - ” r
1

;;Subj:_ A Board of Investigation to inguire into and report upon

;il. A soard of Investigation consisting of yourself as Senior Member and

the circumstances attending the death of Mr. James V.
Forrestal, : g

ECaptam . MC. U. S. Navy, Captain : MG,

gU. 8. liavy, Cowmander , MC, U. 8. Navy;:an 'eutenant

:iCommander , MC, e S Navy, as additional members and

i Lieutenant ; MSG U. S. Navy, as recorder, will: ‘convene
at the U. 8. Naval Hospital, Natlonal Naval Medical Center,i Bethesda,

e 2. The Board is hereby empowered and directed to admiﬁiéﬁeq
{ each witiness attending to testify or depose during the course of the pro=

Maryland, at the earliest opportunlty for the purpose of induiring lnto
and reporting upon the circumstances attending the. death of Mr. Jazz
Forrestal, which occurred on May 22, 1949, at the U. S. Naval Hoqpltal
National Vaval Medical Center, Bethesda Maryland. e -

ceedinys of the Board of Investigation.

3, The nroceedings of the Board will be conducted in accordance with the
provisions of Chapter X, Naval Courts and Boards, and a complste Finding

of FPacts submitted.

. The attention of the Board is particularly invited to ths-prov1smons
of sections 731, 732, 733, 73L and 735, Naval Courts and Bo haf o =

5. By copy of this precept, the Commanding Officer, U. B Naval Hospltal
Natilonal Naval Medical Center, Bethesda, Maryland, is directed to’ furnlsh

I

|

|

f the necessary clerical assistance.

REAR ADMIRAL, MEDICAL CORPS, 'U.:

MEDICAL CFFICER IN COMMRND, NATIONAI;NAVAL MEBICAL CENTER
BETHESDA, MARYTAND .
SENICR OFFICER,PRESENT;Vf




ETEST Tawy

1

‘% HATIOWAL MAVAL #EDICAL CEJTER
ﬂ BETHESDA, MARYLAVD.
!" JIONDAY, WAY 23, 19L9.
I 3 .

I mhe buusd wet at 11:45 a..

; icedical Corps, U. 8. Wavy (Ret.) Active,
| UL

fgaptain z, oGieal Carns, iis 8. Hevy;

JCaptaisn - —a edisad Jerom, e 8. Wen
s 1 ledienl orps, U. 8. Havy, and

1T den? K - I Vitadies )l germe,. Ue S Navy,

el

i@l % ~cdical Service Jorps, U. 8. Wavy, regorder.

0 SR K » wivilian, wag introduced as reportber.

caing order, hersto »refixed, was read, and the board determined
rocedure and decided Yo sit with closed doors,

1

itfo witnesses not otherwise connected with the investigation were present.
!

I

iThe board amrounced that it would adjeurn to the Zorgue at the U. S. Hawal
[ R - PR | - s - - - | - = .

I ifedical Zchool, Iational _Javal !iedieal (enter, Bethesda, Naryland, for the
I purpese «f viewing the body.

IThe me:i:ors of the board examined the body and identifiied i+ as that of the
late Jamws ¥. Porrestal, and revoumonded that an autopgsy be mads,

of the board then proceedad +o Room sixteen eighteen, tower
Isixteen, Huilding one of +the Hational -aval lisdicel Center, Bethesda,
gMaryland, and’ viewed the rcom cccupied by the late James V. Forrestal
land the:: .roceeded to Room sixtesn twenty, the galley on tower sixteen of
'buiidinu e of the Hational iawal jledical fenter, Bsthesds, Haryland, for

4
the »uy 2 of viawing that roou.
i o i wroceeded %o the scene of the landing o2 the
UOUY . e vody landed on the roof of the second deck,

S B T daeiz, 3triling first a ledgs of the fourth deck

on dhwe . ow dheast sornor of bhullding one of the jfational Waval Medical Center,
Bethesd:., _arylaand.

AlL ghe -oowers of the beard returnsd to the regular place of meeting whsre
the boa: . was reassemblsd.

Present; .11 the members, bt racorder, and the reporter.

Eﬁhe bos». then, at 12:30 v.0., ook a rocass until 1:730 p.m., at which time

At reco..veigd.

bressnt: 211 the menbers, the roecordsr, and the reporter.

o witucsses not otherwise counuected with the investigation were presant.

e —




The bo

21‘5 b A

The co

Preseit:

ard then, at 2:18 p.r., adjourned until 9:00 a.m., tomorrow, May

.oy
et ¢

SECOMD DAY.
HATLONAL WAVAL MEDICAL CENTER
BETHESDA, MARYLAND.
TUESDAY, MAY 24, 19L9.

urt met at 9;07 a.n.

ifedical Corps, U. S. Navy (Ret.) Active,

Captain

Sentour wmember; :
Captain I'ediecal Qorps, U, &, Havy,
Capitain iedical Corps, U. 5. Havy,

Comnme nder

Liermts

mambers; and
Lisutenant

Mrs.

The re

) . ::edleal Corps, U. S, Navy, and
axirt gommender iledical Corps, U. 3. Navy,

icedical Servioce Corps, U. 5. Havy, reoorder.
{ivilian, reporter.

cord of proceedings of the first day of the inVGStigaﬁiOn was read

‘and approveds.

o witnssses no% otherwise comnectsed with the investigation were present.

A witn

zs5s was cealled, entered, was duly sworn and was informed of the

subject matter of the investigation.

BExamined by the recorder;

1! Q'
2: @
g

A,
he M-
B5. @

A,

3tate your name, rate and present statiorn of duty.
v junior, Aviation photographer'ts mats first, U. S.
Jevy, mavy idedical School, Bethesda, Haryland,

et are your duties at the Wavel Medical School?
I oam attached to - am finishing work dons on the African Expedition
gwt was sent from herae,

Twore-you called upon recently to take some pilotures?
Yesg, Sir. .

what were the nature of those picturss?
They were of somebody who had fallen from ths sixtesenth floor to ths
outside of the third deck and they wanted piotures of the positicn

of the body.

I show you ten pictures, can you identify them?
Yes, these are the plotures I took. ;

The ten piciures of the body were submitted by the recordargﬁofthe-board
and offered in evidence. There being no objeotion, they were o received
and mariked"Exhibits 1 A through 1 J." -

e




Examined by the board;

6. . w2 you tell us at what time you arrived on the scene and at what ;

tiwme you %tock the pletures? ‘
pictures - that series of plcotures were taken betwesen three

Sy TRy [Ehe |
sad three fifteen. The last piecture was taken s+t three fif teen, as

a montter of faotb.
‘ =
Neither the recorder nor the members of the board desired further 4o examins |
this wiiness.

T™e board informed the witness that he was privileged to make any further :
statement covering anything relating to the subject matter of the investige-|
tion which he thought should be a matter of record in conneotion therewlith, |

which had not besn fully brought out by the previous questioning.
The witness said that he had nothing further +to state.

The witness was duly warned and withdrow.

A witness was called, entsred, was duly sworn, and was informed of +the
subject riattér of the investigstion.

Examined by the recorder:

1. 9. Atate vour name, rate aud present station of duty.
e . - » hospital corpsman chief, U, S. Navy; station,
Jdontonal Laval lledical School, Bethesda, larylend,
P o+ .nt oare your yresent uties at the Hawval Mediocal School?
Ttructor in medieal photography in the photo lab.

3. .. ¢re you called upon recently to take pictures ooncernsd with the
vweath of the late James V. Forrestal?
L. L was asked to shoot a sories of piotures of his room, diet kitohen
and up and down of the outside of the building. :
lea G« i show you eleven pictures; can you identify them?
A, Yes, sir. Thals picture was taken from the diet kitchen window

shooting down toward the ground, toward this ledge. The camera
WaS helu on the outside of the building.

Examined by the board;

5. 0. ,Aau ledge - the ludge of where?
iere apparently was an arm extending out several decks below, sir,

<

6. (. fat floor would that correspond to?

As he third floor. kight below that ledge was a roof like in pro-
vorticn %o the second floor; bunch of swabs, racks and looks like g
screen there. This seconrd picture was taken gtanding on a chair in
the diet I tchen; I believe that is on the sixteenth: “flgor. I had
a man with me who pushed the: soreen baak. You ban sea he upper
corner of the screen, upper right hand corner, 3
appesarance there. The dots were runnlng diagong Ay &Br0SgN B0):
portion of piesture is building, wing in baok o ;
of foous. Ve were shooting for finger prints wh: sre requasted
to get and that is what we have, sir. This third ploture wag: telken
stunding on the deolr with the soreen, letting the screen of the
window come back in place as near as it would of its own aoccord

=

-y

_— oL



viiich also gave us some fingerprints. The fourth piocture is a
sicture that was shot of the ledge of the third deok. I% has
identifying marks where it joins into the building. " The fifth
sicture is & picture of a rug with soms broken glasson it, taken
approximately two feet from the end of the bed. We were unable to
got any identifying marks except the rug; couldn’t pick up the bed
heocause the glass woulda't show. 1t was room sixtesn eightesn.

This is the sixth picture, a picture of the interior of the diet
icitchen on whe sixteenth floor; we were standing in the hallway
shooting into the diet kitchen. That's all we have, just a picture
of that. This is a picture in the bathroom on the sixteenth floor.
e se% up in the bathrub; only thing we could use as identifying
uark was the bowl; our object was to show tlis was a special screen
vAth loek that worked with a key, sir. Ploture eight was %taken on
the sixteenth deck in room sixtesn sipghteen. We took it of the
outboard window front showing this soreen would only open to that
Jdistance, sir. Picbure nine was taken from the roof of the third
Jeck shooting straipght up to the diet kitchen window showing the
height of the tower, and giving windows and the corner. Number ten
igs a picture of the room on tower sixteen standing in. the outboard le;
hand eéorner shooting diagonally across it showing the' bed and place-
went of chair. Picture eleven is the pioture from the entrance
sgailn showing the screen as far as it will open ang the arrangement
of that side of the room, sir.

Examined by the beard continued:

7. &. vou mentioned picture eipght sliowed that ths soreen could open; was
“re screen open when you took the picture or did you open 1%t to see
how far it would open?

L. The screen was approximately in thet position; I believe I did pull
va it, sir, but as far as my opening it or unleoecking it I just
oulled it on back taut.

Tie eleven plctures were presented by the recordser to ths board as an
exhibi%. There being ao objection, they were so received snd are appended

¢ warked "“uxhibits 24 through 2K.™

Weither ithe recorder nor the members of the beard desired further +o
sxamine tilis wilitness.

The board informed the witness that he wes privileged to make-any fur ther
statement cowvering snything rc¢lating to the subjeot matter of the
investigation whioch he thought should be & metter of record in comnnection
therewith, which had not heen fully brought out by the previous questioning.

LSO B 2 A L 3 3 - i o
The wiiness gaid that he had nothing further to state.
The wiiness was duly warned and withdrew,

A witness was oalled, enterad, was duly sworn, and was informed of the
subjeci -atter of the investipgetion.

ct




Examined by the recorder;

1.

2,

o g7y

S
¥
.

3tate your name, rank and present station of duty.
daptain, itedical Coruns, U. 5. Wawvy, Chief of
_europsychiatry, U. 3. Lavael Yospitel, Bethescda, liaryland,

{eptain would you state your gualif'ications as a neuro-
psychia Trist?

I em & dlplomate of +he American Board of psychiatrysand Heurology,
certified in psyoriatry nineteen forty and in neurology nineteen
forty-one, I am & follow of the American Psychiatric Asscclaticn,
Chairman of the Committee of Womenclature and Statistics of the
.sierican Psycidatric issociation, member American Neurologiocal
sssociation, fellow of Amcrican Cellege of Physicians, member of
she auneriocan fcadeny of Heurology. I have been in osychiatric work
since the completivn of my internship in aineteen ithirty-one with
©he usual interruotions ooccesioned by sea duty.

septain . hew long have you been (hief of the Neuropsychiatriec
service at the Hawval Fospital?
vlnoe Ay third, aineteen forty-five.

we ywu recently had a patient under your care by the name of James

porrestal?

_hen was iwister Iorroestal admitted to this hospital?
.t about scventeen hundred on Saturday, April second; ninetesan
oy ty-nine.

Upder what circumstences was Lilster Forrestal admitted o the
hospital?
.6 Thursday, HMarch thirty-first, about noon, shortly before noon,
cho Burgeon General called end said that I was to get packed ime-
aediately and dressed in civilian oclothes and meset Admiral

at the Naval Aiir Station, Anacostias, for a flight south
o sees a patient. He was guite uncertain as tc how long I would be
gone or wha+t the situation was or even where I was going. He said
that the patlent was ifister Forrestal but thers were no details

coaoerning the nature of his diffioulty., Admiral and I
landed at Stuard, Florida, at about eight o!'clock that evening and
wore met and taken to the home of Hister . Mister

and subseguently ir. who was.alSe at the
rogsort town of Hobe Sound gave us some information of wha+t had besen
solng on with Mister Porrestal who had arrived there -two days pre-
viously. In genseral, they described an individual: who was quite
Loy ressed, sleepless and restless. They also told ug, which we had

not lkmown before, that liister “haditbeen reques ted
by iister Forrestal to come to Hobe Sound with aj phys olan and'.
lister was arriving the following day Wmth,pootor

« TUnder the circumstances L considered it unethical to

take any vart in the case - despite our having been sen ﬁhere because
lister Forrestal had designated a physieclan of: his own choice. . Ag

o result, I remained completely out of the picturs anq Dootor

arrived lute the following af terncon, Aprilifi

exninined Lister Forrestel aud Doctor s Miste

Lohad and I then had dinnsr together 4o [ di

gituation. wns of the opinion tha+t Mister :

He

_5.-




was imarily om a reactive basis end had
th oa tot of very difficult respoasi-

iR &

DLl 83 el gl
& e e discussed hospitalization for the
sent nt some Jowngth, paring purdiouler atbtentlien to. what type

soald b @ ployed and waere that hospsitel shouyld bu
i ' gnd I didats participate in this dis-
f wwssion but were svescut.  Lockor end Mis ter
| shem arrived at the couwclusion 'dster Forrestal should be treatsd in
general hospital, that the iJaval lospital, Bethesda, provided the
Hubt nossible facilities swvaileblse. Ameng other things that entered
i in their consideration was that idster lrorrestal was suffering with
; rocoverable illeuess, that recovery could be expected in & rsascn-
" 3ly shordy period of tiae, three %o six months, that recovery
robably would be complebe and that atbeantilon should be paid to
sat@ching him from unnecessary stigma or any intrusion on his
Lliness that nilght subssguently interfere with his life. I -had been
| iustructkted by the Surgeon Feneral to briung IMister Forrestal back to
i sho hospital if he vished to come so that I aocepthed:. him as &

e D TS0 EN
Looated.

_ngient the.following worning, April second., I. went bagk on the

svoning of Lpril first and simply spoke tv him along with Doctor
but astwislly took responsibility for him the following

cging. Tl were flovw back and he was edmitted here that afternoon.

1ts of your observations and treait-

e i =l resu
ch ol cpecially in refercnce to his mental
;l i D ‘
ﬁ L.  iszter Jorrestal was obvlously quite severely depressed. I called
L .2 hoggital from Zobe Sound on the moruning of the second and msked

! st they have two roomg available, one on the off'icers!' psychistric
suction and the other iun the tower, at that tlme [ had not examined
S ister rForrestal, vas uwot et u#ll sure of how much security he nesded.,
o the flight up I had opportunity te falik to Docter cat
great leugth and to mee the pr tient briefly. As a resuls, L felt he
souald be handled in the tower satisfactorily, provided certain
security measures were talen. Consequently, he was admitisd 4o the
tower with a contluwous watch whon he arrived here. The history
inuicated that pister Jorrestal had had a dbrief period of depression
last summer but that this had cleared very rapldly when he went on
o vacation. His preseunt difficulties seomed to have started about
I twhe first of dite year, jernaps a lidtle earlisr, with very mild
i Jeressive sympioms hepluning at that vime and & good many shysical
cowaptoms, aotieably weijut loss and constlgatlon. The depression
i ik Beem rE e Raiddad ;rom about the fifteenth of February nineiteen
: sGy-nive but had wod decome ﬂ&uuallj overwhelming until the
N £ o L TR T LT el ien would have bean approxmmauely

sii fweaty-Iifeh aua th. A% that time he became very
.. rvesged omd I believe bs a rpguld of tha? relinguished Yis cffiee
e Biweos devs eurliuy thau had veen previcusly plemmed. He wes

il by ;i"tﬁr o the fonday before admission snd on his
ioe intasdiately reliacuished Liis of'fice and went fto Florida for
‘ust. Tnu chysical eoonalnaticn was done by Doctor limmediately |

Lo adwission vhilch slowed snwthing remarlable except some elevation
c. 2lood pressure. fhe neurological examination was negative excent
. oguall, Tixed pupils wmich, o far as I kuoow, had no significance.
.~2ter Jorrestal was obviwusly exhausted physically and we postponed
sy complete studies until such time as his physioal condition eould




ve allevieted, He was started immediately on a week of prolonged

narcosis with sodium amytal. His physical condition was sc bad we

had difficulty adjusting the dose of emytal because of his over-

response to it. About the third right his blood pressure dropped |

4o fifty~five systolic under six grains of amytal. Tqiprevenﬁ any

confusion in the orders on the case I selected two of' the residsnts,

i Do tor » and Dootor and put them on port and starboard |

wudch to bagin at five orclock each evening. [he doctor on watch

s1a,% in the roow next Yo ister Porrestal. On Monday after ad-

i sission on Saturdey security screens were provided for the room

: +iat Tister Forrestal occupied and for the head connected with i%

uy woving them from tower five. At the same time = look was placed

ou she outer door of the bathroom and striot sulcidal precautions

suvi observed. I saw lister Forrestal for interviews daily during

w5 morning of that first weok when he was allowed to come out of'

1. marcosis for short periods of time. These interviews wers

dcvoted primarily to history-taking, His response 4o that sarly

treatment was very good and he gained about twio poundg during ths

course of thefeeks' narcosis. The following week, beginning the

eleventh of April we started iister Forrestal on a regime of sub-

shock insulin therapy combined with psycho-therapeutic interviews.

Mhis was continued about four weeks but his response Ho it was not

as wood as I had hoped it to be. He was so depleted physiocally he

over-reacted to the insulin much as he had to the amytal and this

ovcusionally would tlwovw him into a confused stafte with a great .

denl of agitetion and confusion so that at the end of +he sscond

| s ¥ ohad bo give bhim e thaee day rest period instead of the usual |
|
|
|

i‘ velbe il o

i ci.z day rest period. [ am not sure that that wagthe end of the second

oo osird weelk,. At the end of the fourth week again he was over-
cacting to the insulin and I decided tc discontinue 14 sxcept in

i gtimlating doses. Froa that time on he was ocarried with ten units

! or insulin before breakfast and another ten units before lunch with

g tra feedings in the aftermoon and evening. In splte of +this he

gniuned only a total of five pounds in the entire time he was in the

, hezpital. His course was rather an odd one, although in gensral it

i followed the usual pattern of such things. The odd part came in the

weoilly variation of the depression. I can demonstrate it and explain,

l:otead of the dépression lightening, instead of straight up in a

t li:e he would comé up until about Thursday and then ‘dip, hitting a

l

|

4

E

low point on Saturday and Sunday and up again until the middle of

the week and down agein Saturday and Sunday. Iach weel they were -

g liftle higher. He was moving upward steadily but it wes in & wave-
liltze form. In additicn, he had the usual diurnsl variation, the low
poin% of his deprassion occcurred betwsen three and five a.m. so that
‘ th= coursa towards recovery was a double wave-like motion, the'dsily
, variation beluy dugrelted on his weekly variation. The deily variation;
: ig wery comeon, the weeltly variaticn is not so common and that was

the sortion of the course that I referred to as "odd".

f

Ths boerd then, at 10:10 a.m., tbok & recegs until 10;18 a«m., at which
time it reconvensds

Present; All the members, the recorder, and the reporter.
. g i D

No witnesses not othsrwise counnected with the investigation Were present.
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i, Captein, ‘edical Corps, U. S. Wavy, the witress under
exarine ion when the recess was taken, entered. He was warned that the
cevieusly taken by him was still binding, and continued his

Tes 'ti;.:-;;Lyo
Exanined by the recorder continued:

8. 0. Captain I show you a clinical rscord, can you identify

1%7 g
This is the nursing record of uister Forrestal. The only portion
- don't recognize is this poem copled on brown paper. .Is that the
gne he copied? It looks like his handwriting. This is the record
of yster ¥orregtal, +the wlinical record.

s

The clinical record was presented to the board as an sxhibit, There being
no objection, it was so received. A photostatio copy is appended marked

i = Ln o
9., (. Captain . would you continue your testimony?

The witness reguested permission to refer to the oliniocsl record which has
been introduced 8s an exhibit so as to refresh his memory.

The permission was grantad.

A. In additicn to the further therapeutis measurses which have heen
mentioned we established a rather strict regime of isolation
from the ocutside, primarily because the patient felt-.quite unable
to tolerats visitors. Throughout most of the course of trsatment

only four physiéians were allowed to write orders and it was generally
understocd that all orders were to be referred +to me if T could
be reached., The resident medical officers, Docter L ©and
LOETEE 1, were alleowed a cerdain smount of discretion on +the
sweaing wateh towards carrying cut the orders in detail. As late
wg the btwenty-ninth of April the patient was still gquits suicidal
cad persormel wers reminded of this by an order in 'the chart. A
~ealk later the insulin therapy was disocontinued and beginuning on
. e eighth of iy the patient was placed on the stimulating doses
o insulin which I previocusly mentionsd. e continued +o improve
in the irregular fashlon wvhiclh I have described and by the ninth
of yimy I felt it safe for Irs. to -make her plans to
;v abroad but didn't {hinlk he should go with her. ily reason for
olijecting to his poing was, dlronically enough, that I knew in the
rggovery »ericd which seemed at hand the danger of sulolde was
rather great. The son returned fo his work in Paris on May
thirteenth. The family was at all times kept fully advised as
to the patient's progress but I didn't warn them contimiously of
the sulcidal throat nor did I mention it to any one except my
immedigtes colleapgue, Loctor » By that I mean that T felt
my job was Lo accept respousibility for +the patient and that the
Tanily should not be unnscessarily +troubled or worrised by the
continual suicidal threat. By the end of thet week, that is by

. the fourteenth of iay, I felt that deily interviewing could be
discontinued and that I could be absent from the city for a period
of & week or ten days without disturbing the course of the
patient's recovery. From the ninth of May until the elghtesnth
wiich was the last time I saw ister Forrestal,‘l,had‘endouraged

=]
i)
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im to see neople and to extend his activities. He had reached a
Tt in treatment nt which it seemed advisalle for him to soccialize
ru. I believe he did see & few people that week. He had plamnmed

. having some of his friends in this week and saw his business

wanager momentarily on the aftermoon of May twenty-first. The

cha:ices on suicide wore taken rather deliberately as a part of his
trentment. There comes a point in any depressive illness to put
somerelaxation on restrictions, it has to be given if a patient is

Lo make a complete recovery. iiister Forrestal had reached that

ouint. I was fully aware of the inherent danger but felt that that

had to be accepted as a portion of the treatment. That is the

penerel course. i

|
Eremined by the board;
L0, Q. Vhien yoﬁ left tho clty on your temporary addifional duty, whom did

you leave in charge of the case?
B DSEEET was in direct charpge. T:o situation was a little
complicated because Doctor had to be out of town. I intro-
| wiced Doctor to the patient onr konday, the sixtesnth. On
e aftermoon of Tuesday, the seventeenth, I spent quite a long time
ia interview with lLister rorrestal, perhaps two hours and a half,
{ saw him again on Wednesday morning for about an hour. and my purposse
in those visits was, in part, o see what danger might have to be
faced while I was away. At the time he was not suioiddl and in that
considerable period of interviewing I £elt well assured that there
was 1o suicidal preoccupation at +the moment. Tha+t dida'+t mean, of

course, that it wouldn't come with the weelend because Tuesday and
*,odnssday werse his best days. YNonetheless, on Wednesday he was
beiter thenm he had besn on the previous Wednesday. Becausse of the
weelly variation in his condition I could never compare day to day
but I would have to compare the day to the same day of the previous
wedke ;

Ll Q. Pid :Bstber Forrastal, throughout his illness, have acoess to outside
coummnications through the radio, telsphons, newspapsra, corrsspon-
do:stce or meople?

; A. I nad full freedom in everytiiug except telephone and people. We

took the telephone out of the room, net beceuse of ocutgoing calls,
but because so many pocple were celling in and esking and I didn'+t
viaixt to take the risk of his being disturbed by cranks and whet not
viie could get the calls through. We kept visitors out in part at
his own reguest because he didun''t fesl abls to tolerate them. (nse
of the last orders I left, however, was to the affect if he wishsd
he could have his telephone in his room at any time and he could uss
the pay station on the ward at any time. (oncerning the seourity
nieasures i1f you would like tiose in more detail, we began relaxing
tham. I first eased the regulations as a test on the twenty-sixth
or apnril but found that the patient was not ready for it end that

resulted in an order on the twenty-aminth of April tha+t the watch was
to remain in the room at all times, that the patient was still quite
suiocidal, The relaxation on the affernoon watch was only a few days
later, on May first, which indicates how abruptly his condition-wpuld.
change at times in these undulating moments in the illness.. I.al-
lowed the special watch to be out of the room from. theisvening meal
until twenty-ons hundred beginning the firgt of Hay. ﬁive days later
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we left the door open into the patient's room beoause of the heat
iq JMister Forrestal's room. Un the seventh of May we allowed the
day watch to relax somewhat and an order of that date stafes that
the ymteh need not reriain in the room at all times. It is impos-
sible to put into vriting what a special watch needs to know in
detail; usually the men were always instruoted persenally, either
Ly Dootior’ or myself over and above the written order and
this was simply authorization in writing for them to heg ocut.e We
actually encouraged him %o leave his room. It was not cur as-
swmption that he vw.uld be wandering around the hospital at two
otclock in the morzning, thet was his own idea. He ordinarily
slept with the aid of sodium amytal right through the night and
on Friday night I had boesen told by the resident that he slept
threough the night without medication. He was in that stage of
improvement. [i6 was very close to well actually. When I saw

him on the eighteenth I felt we could, didn'+t 'tell him, but felt
hospitalization for another thirty days would probawbly do the
tricl, e was that clese to the end of it., That, of course, is
the most dangerous time in any depression.

nat date did you leave jfashington and turn the cagse over o
voctor a8

L. Oon nay sighteenth. 1 should say that throughout the conduct of
“ia pase while I wes in full charge and had full responsibilify
Sor o i%, it wes a jolng effort by four of ug bLeocause I didntt feel
oAt any one person csuld possibvly find his way through that
antire matter. As & result of this there was a morning oconference
ikh Doctor pogctor and nmyself each day. In
sl L O, ca.¢ out in the beginning, twice, looked over
e sitnation. I talked over the gourse of therapy with him and
@ concurred in it. I subsequently saw him around iay firss, the
sact date I am not sure of, went over the case with him again
cnd he felt thet it was moving ealong sabout as was expsocted.

Sese resideuts that were on the port and starboard; were they
shere in case of emsrgency or did they heve a routine of wvisiting
the pationt during the nighty

A. They were thers primarily for the evening sick call, to be sure
that medications, orders, were carrisd out and in event he nseded
anything; not limited to¢ emergencies. The night time was & bad
tlme with him always and the two residents were fully as aware of
of his ocase and how to handle the things he would bring up. His
depression began to gel deeper in the late svening and very fre~
suently he nesded someone to talk to and I felt he had enough of
18 during the dey and there should be someons elsse during that
time. During my sbsencs spent some afternoons with him
in interview but mot with any very deep psychotherapy, simply
gupserficial support. ‘

1. . pid ifister Forrestal make any attempts at suicide,whi}e_hs was

under your cgre? : : .} 5
A. lione whatsoever.  ~ The matter of suioide in Hobe Sound; he told
roctor - that he had attempted to hang himself with a
weldt. - and I were both very skeptical of that.and both
1o and I were of tha opinion it was sort of a nighﬁmaﬁe;.‘Ihe-mﬂn

-




15, §. Had he, in the course of your interviews, seither gymbolically or

A. Yes, 1 am sure he didn't jump out of the window. My interviews

ind no marks on him and thore was no broken belt. Very frsquently
a depressed person has a fantasy of dying and reports it as real,

3o far as I lknow he never made a single real attempt at sulcide
axceapt that one thet was successful. He was the type of individusl,
fast as lizhtening, of extremely high intelligense and one rsason

i Goubt previcus attempis I knew if he decided to do it he would do
it and nobody would stop him. He was a2 boxer in college and his
movemenis even when depressed, were sc quick you could hardly follow
them with your eye. In the course of psychotherapy he talked a great
deal about his suicide; he would tell me when he was feeling
liopeless and had to do away with himself. At those times we would
tighten restrictions. 1@ would tell me in symbolio language. One
morning he sent me a razor blade which he had conosaled. Hhen I
interviewed him I said "What does this mean?V. s said "It means T
am not going to kill myself with a razor blade'. Qf course, hs hed
the blade and could have done ite A man of that intelligenoce ocan
1ill himself at any time he desired and you can't very well stop
hime. He 1s my first personal suloide since ninetesn thirty-six,
thirteen years ago. The last one was on 8 locked ward at St.
lizabeth's Hospital under immediste,supervision of an attendant.

"o discussed, whenever he felt badly enough, he would talk about the
2055ibilities ofy killing himself and I am sure that when I left hers

on the eighteenth he had no intention at thet time of harming himself

otherwise, suggested his method if he committed suieide?
with him were for one 1o three hours a day over a period of eight
veeks; can't go into all the waterial +that makes me iFhink +that

wut by the time he had bsen here four weeks I was ocerdain there

were only two methods he would use because he had +0ld me, one was
sleeping pills. Ho said that was the one way he could do i+% and the
other was by hanging which made us feel somewhat more comfortable abo
the period of risk, lnowing that he wasn't going out ons of the
windows. I haven't gone into all the detalls of what happened, but
poersonally feel he iried to hang himself. I don't think he jumped;
he may have; don't think it was out the window; think he meant to
hang. For some time he had had complete access to the open windows
the residents! room and for a short period of tims he even glept in
there for two or three aights. There were two beds in the residents
voom and he would sleep in one of those until sbout three ofclook an&
then go baok to his own bed. fThat was the one thing that puzzled
me, when he called me, as to what had happened; I couldn't believe
it because of the window, uatil I got back sand found out about the
bathrobe cord. -

vould you tell us, Cgptain the nature of the watoh that was
maintained in ifster Porrestal's room? Foo ol

i

1% was a psychiatric watch, I dida't know. the cbrpsménjwho‘was on
watoh at the time orf the suleide. However, I left the salection of
the corpsmen entirely up to Doctor and Doctor who
e them personally much better than I. All of ourihen have had
@walning in psychiatric safeguards and procedures-although only.
very few of +them are certified psychistric technicians,  We oconduct
& course of our ow: wideh runs for six months., I dont't kmow how
long the men on watch had even been here or whethdr he had had all
of that course but know he mist have been considered ‘satisfactory
o Dostor or lieé wouldn'+t have been on vwatohs
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Nlew many times did wvoctor visit at the hospital?
Twice. 8 was here April third and April sixth.

AL Yeu (wlowse gtmbe awekor i qualifications brisfly?
woctor _ is5 ono of thoe nost prominent psychiatrists in the
country. e is just completing a term as the President of the
seriean psychiairic isgociation, the Americon Psychoanslytio
sgsociation aand the Central Jeuropsychistric Assoociation, probably
the only man in history to hold all three offices sinumltensously,

Il= hes so many governmmenial appointments as consultant thet I dont't
mow ell of thewm; on the training commitfee of Public Health Sorwvice,
nundreds of them, veterans Committee of lletional Research {ouncil,
2o Incidentally, for the infermation of the board, I was with

uctor _ &t the time I was notified of Mister Forrestal's
~eath., His attitude was that i1 was the ftype of casualty which
somes with theraveutic psychietry; he lmeow all of the steps that had
be taken. 1 spant about thirty minutes with him on Sunday

corning after the suicide; reviewed the case and he felt that the
snduct of  the ease hwd heen in aocord with the prineiplss which

ad been followsed #wroughout, 45 a matter of fact, I alse have a
Targe number of telasgrang and ftslephone calls from some twenty to

T v Ll ey ] throushont %he country, inoluding Braceland
&g off Poyoniotry at layo Clinic, .Leside the pecple here
m BN B nitd uoetor o was the only other:

that lmeow ia detuil the conduct of the case, He was
cersensl friend of lister Forrestalts and thought very highly of
and I had speut two days with on May ninefeentn and
moentleth, end durdng that time. had brought him up to date on +the
aurse of Mister Porrestalls case. He was at that point in complete
seord vl th whot we wore doing ond caslled last night, unforfunastely
vas out, but left word that he would be happy to appear if it were
cwroeusary, wlieh was wind Dogtnr gaid - if the hoard of
caveB ilgntlon vwoula like to t0lic %o him he would come down. I
atilibs Ho sl Yeerkor *.te come until the

aut 13- pefgonsd by der

Dol #in Rl bepase o 14 b dktrpe of  dhb neeting of Americen
syehlatric agsoelnvion which is having some internal trouble and
2wlly siwuld et be hete but [ sa cormmin 1f the bosrd wanted a
w2ephonie cormmunicaiddon vAith him he would be glad to help out any
2y he could,

I doctor - » A% any ¥time, disouss, suggest or epgree on the
celaxation of sufety psrechutions when the +time was appropriate?
Wty 8iv, waé spent w prewt deal of time talking about the danger
cwrded and in tryin; particularly to find some way of transition
srom complete striet security to recovery. 1iister Forrestalr's
oruminence was such that 3t inposed a great burden on trying to
nale any arrangements in which he could have some fresdom of
sromont.  Literally hundreds of people -who called about him, who
w about him, and soms of those were friends, others were psople
see86 rimery intereost seemed to be in what they could get out of
e Ie wasn't in any position to be exposed to any exploitations
erack pots, serovballs and wast nots and & and I, and
family and I, andd fdeter md I, at various times did

B
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a great deal of discussing au bo whot tho move would be in this |
period of relaxation, now we would get him out of the hogpital.
T personally, my porsonal olans wsre,w1th1n the period after 1
game back, depending on his condition, to movs him:to tower |
seventeen where there are no security screens at.all and to
continue his watch about as it was being ocontinmsdiat the time I
left, or more an attending basis than a basis ofivery strict
supervision. It was this period that we were all worried about,
as to how it could be accomplished and ‘and T fully
agreed that restrictions would have to be ramoved as .rapidly as
the patlient's condition juotified. The only hope for recovery in
o people of that sord is to allow them to gradually talke up
- socialization activities. ‘The confinement of a man ko striot
- 1solatlon routine wvhen he is depressed is very apt: o “fix the
illness; there has Lo be sonathlng %o break him awdy from himself
and get him interested in the world outside and pecple outside.
From the very [lirst iister Forrestal's mail and othsr communica-
‘ fions were naunded te him unopened. He was allcowsed:to ses all
vy : of' ther onm &l th2ory no one can live in & veouum snd might just
ag well be sxposed ww whatever came oalong; tha+t is the method of
Jdeeling with it; it ould depend on how well he was or how sick he
vas. It was s simple as that. Actually, he dealt quite well
witn almost everything. It is my own fesling from what I know
that the period of despondency whilch caused him %o end his life
was wvery sudden in onset and probably the whole matter was on an
impulsive basis. That was the one thing I had feared, knowing of
nis impulsivity. Again I say he mwoved like lightening, some of
thogé om pure impulse. That is supported by several things. I
talked to Doctor last night and wvms glad o hear him
say spontanecusly and not just in agreement with me that he felt
that this was an impulsive thing of sudden origin, but ona of the
main evidences ic the complete ebsence of any suiocidal note or
expregsion of suicidal intent in eny way. He left mo message at
all except this poen which I am sure wes meant for me end was ncth
a portion or the suicide. That is o say, I think he was
simply writing that out to demonstrate how badly he felt. Psople
who contemplate suicide almost invariably leave some note to
someons and ugually zomeone clese. The absence of some nots would
i malkes me feel this was & very impulsive sct of the moment. fister
rorrestal was sti1ll bLeing carried Under DU Medlcal Observaticn
but the psychiatric diagnosis was reactiive depression.
Clinically, +the depression wes of mixed type but in- the present
nomenclature the best diagnostic term applioable is Reactive
| Depressicn. There were very stronp reachtive elﬂments in it. It
is the type of denression which we saw very frequently during +the
ar; sixty %o ninety day deprassions in resaction to excessive
work or complete sheuge in a man's life. He had reached a point
ut whichthe entire 1life had to reoriemted with giving up of his
job as Defense Secrotary which he knew was coming some time back.
vverything had to be changed; his whole method of living which had
gone on for about nine years and at his age that sort of rearrange-
mont is a diffiocult task. Many peopls go through this gort of
thing in lesser degree. His, I think, was especially severa ba-
cause he was worn outs “ -
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Before he came to Yethesda while he was down South, did he make any

attempt Lo slash his wrist?

A, 1o, he had a swall scratch on hls wrist which he icld me was not a
suilcidal attempt but he was consideriang it and he was wondering
what he could do o himself and he took a knife or blade and scratched
his wrist, so superlficial it was not even dressed, and wouldn't
come under the heading of "attempt" so far as I am concernsd, There
is one other tiing about the treatment. Ye considered +the pos-
3ibilidy of alectro-siwceck but felt that the reactive portion of the
illness was so prominent thatwe should withhold electro-shoek for at
least ninety days. 1In reactive depressicens if elsctro-shock is ussd
sarly and the petient is returaned to the same situstion from which
e eame there is prave daanger of suicide in the immediate periocd ‘
aiter they return. I the last two or three psople who have jumped |

rom bridges in tova: hore two o them, to my knowlsdge, were

lectro=zhock cures of snurt duration, so straangely encugh ws left
sat electro-snock o aveid what actually happened enyhow.

.
I

s.elther the recorder nor the members of the board desirsd further to
exanine this witnsess. '

The beard informed the witness that he was privileged to meke any further
statemont covering anything relating to the subject matter of the

i vtlon wnich he thought should be a matter of record in counsction
therewith, whic: had mot ceen fully brought out by the previous guestioning.

The witness made the followlag statement;

I woulw like te stress one point and that is that the responsibility of the
case v entirely with me. I had notiing but the most complete cooperation
from the hospitsl authorities here, from Mister Forrestal’s friends, and
from his family. 1 shared the conduct of the case with selected members of
the staff because I needed their assistence but all of the direction of the
case and the complete control of it was entirely in my hands. T would like
t0 make that a matter of record. The problem of responsibility, the
responsibility for its conduct was entirely mine.

Heither the recorder nor the members of the board desired further to
examinc this witness. i :

The wilness said timt he had nothing further 4o state.
The wiitness was duly warned snd withdrew,

4 wituess was called, entered, was duly sworn, and was informed of the
subject .atter of the investigation.

Exemine: by the recorder:
)

L - Stafte your mame, rank and present station of duty.
. Cormender, iledieal Corps, U. S, Nevys My station
ig Pgychiatric Service; officer in charge of +he officerst neurc-

2syechiatric service, U, 3. Waval Hospital, Bethesda, Maryland.
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2. . How long have you been in psychiatry and what are y?urlqualif?cations?
f x. L heve had a special interest in psyohlatry.Sane ?lgeteen.tnlrty—

: two in colleoge end have pursued the study with addlt%ppa} 1nter§st

f cver since. fechnically, the first formal medical ‘training peried
was from June nineteen forty-six to June ninsteen forify-seven as
Lrecutive Officer and Residént in mraining at the. Ue. “Maval Msdical
Unit, Ue 8. Public Health Service Hospital, Fortthrﬁ »- Texas. - From
July, 1947 to the present time I have been sarving‘i§kmy prasent
assigmient as officer in charge of the neuropsychiatric .gervice of

i this hospital. iy official sitatus is on the stafl. -

~. “fould you please tell the board all that you know relative to your

serdioipa tion in the treatment of the late James V. Forrestal?

4. Junt prior to Doector departure on Wednesday, Uay eightesnth
‘¢ had indicated to me that he would like me to taks .administrative
charge while he wes gono. In preparation for this the first time
that I met iister Forrestal was for the purposs of being introduced

" %o him on ifonday afterncon, the sixteenth of jMays I next saw him on
fuesdey moraning along with Doctor brisfly and then I saw him
alone agein for brief periods on the mornings of Thursday, rriday
and Saturday. Iy primary edministrative role was %o handle all .
incoming ¢alls, bto decide whether or not visitors who‘Wishad to gee j;;gl
rfister Forrestal should be permitted Yo see him, to take up with him
dirvectly his choice of wanting to see any particilar visitors and to
nandle any inquiries thet came from outside on either a professional
or personal basis on all matters relative to his case. Gince Dootor

had been in more complete and earlier contact with the

\H

case and boctor © knew the case 1t was Celt that he should
continue to deal with the more personal aspects of the case and
boesor-~" - and I conferred at various times regerding Mister

Forrestal's condition. The feeling that I had regarding his condition,
based upon my ovn observations and conferences with Doctor §
was that his condition remained egsentially ths same.f Most of mny
conversations with him were on a more or less impersonal naturse with

i no ssrious attempt o enter inte the aotual therapsutio situstion.

! .1 last saw llister orrestal onm Saturday morning about ten orclock at

" .alch time he seemed to be about the same as he had been on the pre-
coding few mornings. sbout zero two ten Sunday morning I received a

cnbfrer eall Frem  Be@sar in which he informed me *that [lister ]
vovrestal had goans through the window and his body was found below.
. et culled DLoetor in iontreal, cCanada, and informed him of

.o sltuation and told him that I would come te the hospital
nuediately to do whatever was required.
Ixamino. by the beard;
i . Q. Loctor, during your period of supervision of this case was it neces-
| sary for you to change or issue any new orders?
| A. o, sir, I considered his condition to remain essentially the same
| g11d made no change of any of the existent orders.

B¢ Q. When you took over charge of Mister Forrestal were you familiar with
“he wvarious aspeots of his case? i
Ae Yes, sir, in a rather gsneral way. I had a general understending of
his over-all clinical picture, although I had had no active participa
tion in the case up to lionday, llay sixteanth. 7
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13. Q.

15. Q. !

A,

sre you aware of the possibility of suicide?

EE, LT
-ou stated that he was sbout the seame; over what period of time did
you have reference to, did you mean from the time he entered the

LOqutal or for the few days vou were cognizant of his oase?
% would only bs from the period the first time I s&w him on }Monday

“ho sixteenth up %o Saturday the twenty-first.

“aturday was the last time you saw him?

Tag, Sir.

“rat time?
Lpoproximately ten o'clock Saturday morning.

fod you sew no change in his condition at that tims; no evidence of
any undue disturbance or agitation or depressgion?

gir, he continued his usual discussions; he wes rather brief in
in discussions.: It was rather difficult to reach him in a senss of
siablisning a close perconal contact but his intellesctual function-
ings seemed as usual. Fe gave no increased evidenoce of tension or
daoressive features; made no ummsual references. Most of our dis-
sussions were conversations either of personal life, he usually di-
recting questions toward me about my activities, or some of my
tackground features but since I was not entering into.the treatment
situation I saw no rseason for participating in perscnal discussions.

Then you saw no reason winatsoever to make any change in orders, to
huven up on seecurity or take extra precautions?
o is correct.

seetor, in the preliminary testimony you stated that. thers was & dual

Tunection, that you, Doetor _ were *p handles the incoming
inguiries and Doctor F . 3 because he was. better- aoqualnted with
4his case, +n handle tho professional aspect. In other words,

Loctor . haandled the professional and you, handled ‘the

adirinigtrative mattors?

; is essentially trus but et the same +ime the over=all respon-~

v ility was nine siace I was nlaced in charge of his case and T
colerred Tor that reason with Tootor - *as %o his opinions of
ithe more personal phase of {he peatient's condition.

Sut youractually didn't have any psychiatric 1ntsrv1ews w1th s ter

rorrestal?
ot more than would he derived from conversations I hed with him on
tiie moraings of fhursday, Friday and Saturday.

Lia ilister Forrestal make any attempt at suicide while you had charge
o1 the patient?

19, sir, none that I was over informed of, beoame awara of, or
suspectod. e - ,

Lid Mister pForrestal indicate in any way to you: th&t he might do harm
to hinself?
lvone whatewer.
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T absence of Lochor
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vile was in immediete cherge, would you
ve Telt free to chewge cny safety precautions that might be taken?
0T P 2k e Ch g U1 undersztood hetween Dootor and T if there was
sxy question in the condition of* the patient which rsquir?d any
further considerstion or atlention to get in touch with him

‘ ]

14 yo. had - in your observations of this case and i?
|
i

irvaediately.

| 17. 4. o get in fouch with him or take immediate action? |
L.l would have assumed elther vay; if immediats action wag indicated I i
would have felt free to take it or if I had any other questions

about 1% I would have felt free to contact him.

3ut you saw ne indication at any time to take action or change any

180 Q- J
ovders? !
4, Lo, sir, I saw no specific indication for changing the course of
aanagement or treamaent. i
P 19, 7. Jivre was @ hospilal corpsman on watch on ifister rorrestal, was

shere not?
A, Yes, sir.

20, T, 3ut he was not reguirec Lo bs in the room?

¢ sJdu U

A, 0% at all times at this stage.

"3 ne have orders to ¢heck up on him every so of tent
o5 orders were Lo be with the patient mest of the time but that he
“11d leave the room nz desired for purposes which were indicated.
P s oyou renember the man on watch batween the midnight and two !
1glock Sunday mor:iing on the twenty-second? '
.. _es, sir, that was o corpsman by the name of

|
|
Lt nhe designated an & neuropsyeibiatrie technioian? ’
Y. .0, Sir, but he hed Lad e degrve of training on the nsuropsychistric |
sorvice in the closed w»ards which would be enough 4o give him suf- |
“ieient understanding ol this lype of problem. !

o2l o gre you and poetor in full accord that the safety pre-
es, sir, besed or my understanding of the cese as derived from
captain and my conversations with Dootor that
there had been no perceptible change in the patient's condition
and also my own observation. 1 had observed nc perceptible change

ir. the patient's condition.

# 25. Q. You had had conversation with Poector * about it, is that
| viaht?
l L. U835, sir.

e aware of the suicidal tendencies of Hister Porresial and had h

besn instructed to watch against suiecide?f :

L. 7c the best of my knowledge he had been informed of the nature of
the case ané writteu instructions for the corpsmen were detailed in |
=.e chart, and, in addition, there wes a doctor ia constent

: s ttendance &t the spol wvhere he could obtain any additional informa-
i sion or understanding as desired,

1

i

t

I 26, Qe Ls this corpsmen that nad the watch from after twelve orclock - was

| a2y
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27. .. vms ifister Forrestal permitted to go into the galley or the
gassageway of tha sisiteenth deck without suner vision?

it is my understanding that the restrictions had been lifted %o

s degree where he was permitted to go out to the passageway to

.nke phone calls or tu enter the dottors' room adjoining his.

23, . Dpid lister Forrestal exhibit any abnormal bshavior Saturday
norning when you saw hiina?

Wwo, 8ir, none thet seemed to we any more different from his usual
attituds of the preceding mornings.

Weitie:r tha recorder nor the wembers of the board desirsd further to
examing this witness.

the board informed the witness that he was privileged to make any further ;
statenent concerning the subject matter of the investigation which he thought
chould be a matter of record in connection therewith, which had not been I

fully brought out by the previous questioning. i

The wilness said tha® he md nothing further to state.
The witness was duly warned aad wi thdrew,

i
The boerd then, at 12:0L pem., took g recess until 1:15 pems., &t which timei
i% regovensds |

j

Presen: All +he members, +the recorder, and the reporter., \

Lo wiii.weoses not otherwise comnected with the investigatlon were present.
& sAdsooe warn ¢alled, entored, was duly sworn, snd was informed of the :
subjou. .atter of the inves.igatlon. é

Bxandiind by the recorder:

1. Q. State your name, rank and present station.
e Commander, lledical Corps, U.S. Navy, presently
attached %o the Y. 5. Javal Hospitel, Bethssda, Haryland,

"mat ars your duties at the Naval Bospital?
A, iy duties ars - I am a roesideat in neurcpsychiatry.

%. Q. aow long have you been & neuropsyohiatrist in this resident status?
i« Since I reported o the Meval udospital on Qotober eighteenth, |
ninetesn forty-six. I
|

|

i

L. . ould you please tell the board all you know relative o your con-
azgtion with the trestment of the late James V. Forrestal?
we ¥ First knowledge of [ ister Forrestalrts cass was on Sunday after-
aoon, April third, after his admission to this hospital on
Saturday, at which time ¥ was called &+t home by Captain and j
wld to report to the hospital that aftermoon and be prepared to '
spend tho aight. I reported to the hospital and te Captain
wixd was informed that 1 was to stand e special watch, sleeping in
the room adjaceunt to Liister Forrestal's suite and that my.duties, so
rfar as the watch was concermed, were to handle any emdrgency that
tight come up durdng my tour of duty at night and also +o keep
Zoctors and y who were handling the case, informed of
vhat was going on. I contlinued to stand a regular watoh at night
vith Mister Forrestal on altornate nights, to alternate with Doctor !
. The hours %o be covered were from the end of working hours,
apgroxima tely sixteen thirdSy, until the beginning of working hours

the naxt morning at zero eighit-thirty. In the mornings Doctor
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would visit Ifister Forrestal briefly and Doctor
usually saw him in the afterncons. -ffter }ister Forrestal was
tarted oun sub-shock insulin therapy my duties werse increased to
hwe extent that I was to r eport and remain in the room with the
satient for the last thirty minutes of the insulin therapy period.
this therapy period was usually started et eight o'oleck an@ i
terminatead at eleven hundred. 50, on the days that he receiwved
insulin I was with him from approximately ten thirty fo a few‘v
minutes after elsven hundred. After the insulin therapy was qils-
contimied I went back to my old schedule of on every other nighte
vthen Doctor left tovm he asked me to meke & point of sitting
wAith Jister Yorrestal at some time during the day every day. This
© took to mean in thie afternoons at the times that Captain
44 ordimarily beca seeing him and on Wednesday, Thursday, Friday,

2id sit with ji-~ter worrestal for anywhere from forty-five

Squtes to an nour id a half and sat with him briefly on Saturday
Loraine.  That about covers the whole time as to when I was actually

3
-
kY

narea.

~asd by the board;’

vers you fully aware of tlie various phases of liister Forrestal's
condition frow shortly after he was admitted as a patient to the
liospital? ’

Yss, sir, Doctor Loctor Doe tor and I had dis-
cussed at intervals warious procedures and therapeutic efforts
shat were being wade during the course of the entire oase.

During the period of his stay in the hospital did you feel that he
vvas making some gradual improvement.

es, sir, my feeling from the first was that he was pretiy overly
sepressed, as evidenced by his laclk of interest in his surroundings,
interest in persoual contact with me on the brief occcasions that I
saw hinm, whereas as the ecase progressed, partvioularly during the
insulin period he seemoed Lo hecome more alert, more interestsed in
his surroundings, aad partlicularly interested in what was going on
ghout the floor itself and the hospital.

vhat was your feeling in regard to the possibility of suicide
during the first few days of his stay in the hospital?

4. iy fesling with regard to sulcide during the first few days of
nis stay in the hosgpital wes theat it was potentially present, that
being based on psyciriatric experience with depressed patients., I
aad no aciusl factual evidence of any sort which would lsad me <o
e able to say specifically that suicidal thoughts or ideas wers
oresent. Jowever, I 4id feel asnd consider it a pessibility on the
bagis of general psychic tric lkmowledge.

et was your feeling iu regard 4o the possibility of suicide at
approximately the time that Dootor left Washington?

st that time I Felt that flster Porrestal had mede a definite
improvement in the ovwer-all picbture from the time of his adnissieon
and that the possibility of suicide was much more remote than sarliesr
in the case. There werae geveral obgervations made during the course
v the case whiech led we to feel this. About two weeks before
Doctor left I wenl up teo stand the watch one night and
stopped by the room to speak to lilster Ferrestal, asked him how he
was feeling. He seid "about as uaual®™, Ws chatted briefly about

uy medical education aund where I ligved and what not; then later,
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(I .
} when 1 came up Lo po o bed about T wenty-two forty-five, he was
ﬂ qvatce ead I esked hiin how he was feeoling. e sald Mabout as usual'
@ Lut he felt his room was a little swffy and in view of the fact i
| et two oi the vindows were stuck and couldn't be opened [ agreed
+iat the room was a littls stuffy. e said that he thought possibly)
he would be able to sleep better if he slept in the .rcom with me, - |
shere being two beds in my bedroom and I said T thought that wouli |
i he a good idea, it might be more comfortable over there, So he did sleep
the room thet I slept in that night. My feelings at this time
ore thet the patient was making en effort to broaden his horizons.
. felt that e was lonely end felt the need of friendly contact
.ith other people and 2lso felt at:the time that the suicidal pos- |
sibili+ies nad lesssusd sufficiently G0 make it safe for him to 1
|

rerain out of his own room. The danger of suicide had heen dis-
cussed viith Dogtors ana 1 or geverel occasicns prior to
“his end we had been encouraging the patient to broadsn his
setivities even prior to this particular inecident., i

! 9, (e o0 oany tine while Uoctor was sway did he appear to you to Dbe E
preoccupied, VOTTlEL, digturbed or agitated more than usual?

Ae v the conirary, he sppeared less preoccupisd, worrldd disturbed, ‘
and particularly lass azitoted. On Wednesday aftsernoon after '
Laoetor left tednesday morning I siteyed with him about an ’
nour. The relationshiy during tha+t hour was as ususl. Ve talked ,
of superficial things .uch as the flowers in his room, a thorn I :
had removed from is thumb some %ime previously. Thursday night he I
said that he would like +to atternt sleeping without his ususl medi- !
cation of sodium amytal wid I agreed w that with him for e trial !

! aeriod but insisted that if he were not asleep within a reasonable I

length of time, L thiak about wn hour, he should teke his amytal. .

Ji Friday I sat with nhim fvar about an hour Jriday afternoon. He L

vwos silghtly more cheerful than he had been on Thursdaye. The im-

oression that I had of him on Thursday was identiocal with the im-

oression I hed with him on the Sunday before which was a day that

vaptain didui'% see him. That is to say, his appearance and
fesling for his coadition was almost idsntical,

ey

10y e ... d yOouy &1 Goy tema deeing Doctow ' abgence, discuss his |
condition with Doctor i 0
Ae fon, air, we htalked over almost everybnlang that happsned with
JVIChc ch and Loctor

|
%ll. Qe taring this period did anything cowe up that made you thinlk that you
i should tauten up on his privileges any?
! A. i@, 8ir, to tho combrary. The thhings that did come up, the feeling
! I had was if anything, priviloges should be extended. We didn't
Lauvease any privileges during hils period hecause we didn't have
N SEN DT o1 T pTeLn aboard to discuss the matter and we
1 rigured we would lset the standing orders that they had left when they
Q lor't remein. Jlowever, ftlivse orders were, we fely, reletively lenient
i a.1¢ that iilstber Porrestal wns fully capable and able %0 go along on |
thiat line without any change eidther to increase or to decrease the
reglhrictions that were in effect at thet time.
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. i . d vow See him Saturdsy, L&y twenty=-firsty
Cgu, gir, I saw bhinr. ‘

Ty Vel  llig TRl E sspions of him ot thet time.

£ soturday moraing when I woke up, having glept in the room nsext o
“i5 with boilr the doors opsned through thsz babh*oom with my bed
crranged so that 1 could look direotly into his room and he could
Leok directly im my room, I got up, dressed, went in and spoke to
nim, asked him the Xind of night he had. That night, Friday

sht, ne had slept the entire night with no awakening periods that

al

¢ lmow of at all viihout a sedative. On Friday night he had gone %o ;
337 wiile I was in the room sitting with him. While I was sitting E
i4h him ¥riday ni ht he said he Telt sleepy end got in bed. Shortly|
fta he had beew in bed for a little while I left and checked with |
the corpsman aboutl nine otelock to find out had he taken his smytal. i
l

|

|

|

l

\
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|

s give him some anytal." iy understanding was that he slept the

|
! the corpsman soid he was sleeping so I said Myell, den't walce him up

gntire night.

1h. Q. Jhat was your final impression of him when you left him Saturday?
A. § saw hin again Saturday morning at which time an old friead of his:
Trom ew York came dover Lo wisidy, a nlster . Ye had bean
inf'ormed by Laptain on Thursday night that Mister
sould be dowas Ssturday morning and he had pormission to visit. I
tad told iister Forraestal on Friday afferncon that iiister
veuld be down Saiturday merning. e had no comment. My impression |
Fotmurday moruing was that his condition was about as it had been for |
+ho last several deays. He didn't appear 4o be partioularly depressad,
i ther did he appear to be particularly chserful,

15, . fhen you laft him Saturd Jj feeling very comfortable about his
vundition? |
AL toturday aoon ToSpoid Ho Docfor 25 he was Talling over the weeli-

& wateh and tole poetor that 1 felt the wesk~and coming up !
~ i.lo be about as usual wiidich was my feeliung and consldersd +the
(s 5SSy e d“013iﬂ5 baclk by JSunday afterncon to sit with him as
i 1ad beex doing but decided, on the basis of the faot that I felt he
vag petiing aloué alright, that that would not be necessary and didn’f
olan to come over on Sunday afterncon to sit with him.

164 5,. ./id Mister Jorrestal, in the times you would be with him, axpress |
aunything ebout international affeirs, discuss them with you? '
Mo o, SEFE

f
i
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I
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17+ @. Lo you think he was Trying o get awey from such things?
i ¢idntt have much feeling about whether he was or not. - He never

nade any effort tu tall elong those lines when I was with him, no, 81
In fact, the basis of most of our conversations were relatively super-|
icial, having to do with things of the moment; should he take his
slecping pills or not; was L goinpg to sleep in the room next o him

or not; how was the rose thorn in his finger getiing along; or

sue ther his consdipation was beiuy taken care of or nots Another ons
or my duities in the case was to write orders for his bowels and I hadl
done that earlier in the course of the case, .
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22. Q. At the time that you left hinm Saturday morning, May %ﬁanty-firsﬁ,

I |

Suring your conversations with him did he show any interest in

Giscussing any current svents or anything cutside of himself? |
4. unly once. He asked :e on gseveral occasions did I plan Lo remain in :
e service and I remarlked once that I planned to remain in the
service il the service irented me as well as it had in the past but
with all of the chaages in prospect relative to the Navy and +the
ssrvices I was standing by to see how some of those came out and
veeping en open mind on the subject., He evidenced considerable
interest at thet time saying that he had been in on the unifiocation
deal and said that he felt thet it was a good thing and would
probably work out to everyone's advantagse. This was said in a rather
round-about fashion and not speeifically a direct quote. I don's
remember tho exact words.

&, pid he ever discuss any of the lighter things like baseball? i
o discussed briefly golfing with me once, merely to say that he had
Leen a golfer at one %ime and What's about all so far asthe lighter

_ere the windows 1a ister iorrestalls room locked on the Sstwurday
ovning that you last saw him?
co of e were unlosioed, two locked.

o
)

1

I

e LY I
e e Y Were gonceried. ; )
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wse vindows

C ., thetwindow sereans on lfdster orrestalts room were; thers were a
ohnl of four security screens. In the room itself three screens,
=0 on one side, once on one side, fourth in the hsad, Tun the in-
shollatien of the socurity screens the two s creens nearest his bed
were warped and coulén't be opened or closed without getiing a part
of the scale thiat was in the room and taking two people to prize and
push and twist to onen end eloge it. I know this becsuse the ocorps-
man and [ tried one of +tnem oul about & week or weel and a half
Laefora ‘the ocase ended. 1In the entire aredg the overhead drops down
aliout eighteen inckes in front of the windows whilch were offset,
Thase security screens open inward and hit on this ocverhead long
before they can be opened and when we opened these two they were
wardeds (ne afternoon to raise the windows -~ it was a sultry day,
vite of the thunderstorw afterncons - +the corpsman that was on, quite
& szall fellow, and I were working om it and I remember distinetly
ving to get him to get benind the 8 oreen on the window side to try
tw raise the windows and he couldn't get in there and following this
I didntd ses any point in loeclkding the two warped frames because their
purose of guarding the window was answered whether they were locksd
or unlocked; namely, they couldn't be opened sufficiently for even a
ginall person to get out even if they were unlocksd. Thers were no
security screens in ‘the dootors' bedroom and for a period of +two or
tiree weels the door from the head tc the dochtors' room had been lefid
unlocked and frequently wide open to improve the ventilation in
lister Forrestalts room. I tried to enocourage him to:move about the
area after the genersl feeling among the staff was that liis horizons
needed to be broadenad. : vt

F 1
ould those wiadows be opened to permit a person to go out though
|
I
i
i

1

2y

ii¢ you notice that the ashiray or Petri plate was broken in ister
vorragtdlts room? =

T the contrary. I noticed that the ashtray Petri plate was not
brolen before because L recall distinetly using i1t forimy oigarstte
wi.lle I was in there. fThat had been my usual ashitray when I went in.

L

Mz had another one by the bed.




lireither +he recorder nor tho ricmbers of the board desired further to examine
<3

11%0 Logrd informed the wiinesz that he was priviloged to make any fur ther
igtate.u. .. covering saything relating to the subject matter of the investigs-
P4ieon wioioh he thought shonld Ge a matter of record inm connection therewith,
which hwd not bsen fully brought out by the previcus questicning.

The witness made the following statement: -

Liy impression of the entire cass was that Misber Forrestal was admitted to
tel in e definitely depressed oondition, was guite 1ll and thet

the hos;

sdurdsg ihs course of his stay in the hospital his improvement was gradually
jupward o4 all tiwes with winor day-to-day fluctuations: in mood. My view-

| point during the entire case was a hopeful ome and in all my contacts with
jthe vatient what few efforts I nade to talk with him were aimed along

opeful lines for & complete return to his normal way of lifes

4

s-sxamined by +the board:
§i

25, & did you know the night corpsman who was on duty with Mister
h 1 Saturday night extending into Sunday morning?
Ak e il’-

b was his name?
1amse wos 5

« Qo Zid you regard him as being a suitable and competent watch for iister
Porrastal during +these hours? ‘

L. Yaz, sir,.

he board ¢id not desire further to exanine this witness,

he board informed the witaess tiet he was privileged to make any fur ther
tatenent covering anything relating to the subject matter of the investiga-
ion wnlclh he thought should be a matter of record in conneciicn therewith,
which had et been fully brought out by the previous questioning.

The witnesr said that he had nothing further +o stata,

e witness was dulywarned and vdthdrew.

/
!

!

A widnese ugs f:s.llcu3 entered, wag duly sworn, and was informed of the subjsct
matter oy she dnvestlgation,
| 1
Exanined ., ithe .recordsyr;
1, y. 3%.90 your aane, renk and aresant station. -

A, EGuo wmber l » ~edical Corps, U..S. Havy, Us. S. Haval

e iyl Bedhesdng  s-grylamnd

By oee o BT pesd dngies 8 e Faamd Hysgd el e
sindng in psyehiotry.

3
Lamt in second year v

Je e Viwew 13 your experience in Wraining in neuropsychiatry?

have been in residency s tatus since December nineteen foriy-seven
whwen I reportsed here at Bethesda. Since the+t time I have besn con-
wliually on the psychiatric service except for three months last fall
when I was on meuroclogy and I am at present again on nsurology,
haviug been on neurology since April first, nineteen forty-nine.

4
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.please tell the bosrd a2ll you kuow relative to your comnection

Torrastal?
sigter Forrestal Pirst onsie to tho hospital as @ patieat I wes
_nased as one of the tw residents to stand might oalls, you might
we were ingtructsd by Doctor that we would be on hand any
ti-e wae vere aeedad and that we should sleep in the rcom which adjoined
2.0 room of idster Forrestul., Tho waboh, or ll, hoth apply, began on
days we had the call ot rfour-thirty end extended through nex+
morining until eight-thirty. On weekends, we split it port and star-
rd, would have weel-end duty Leginning at twelve noon on Saturday
ading through "1l eigiht~thir+ty on Monday. Our duties were pri-
ily %o be at kemd if aay question arose in the carrying out of the
orlevs that were writbten for ifster forrestal, te give agsistance to
the corpsman or nurse if they so¢ desired, to make our routine rounds
4.0 wrisit the patient and on eny matter which we didn't feel guaelified
o .andle (I am referriig to Doetor ) when I say "we") we were
to ot in comtact with either Lec ctor or with Doctor . i T e
past week since Doctor T was away Doetor had besen designa-
tod as the administrativo officer-in-charge and in cease of any dif-
fiaulties during that poriod, the period when we couldn't contact
were supposed ‘o get in touch with Doctor

S . &

l
!
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jomecf o1 A
»
G .y meg T pegluniang or that wateh with reference to datef
e B ml? ) sAgTrer SuFe v far as fhe dmide goes But Misder Ferfeghal
ci..c to the hospital on a Saturday. Doetor . _ * had the first

dutr on Sundey night aad { had the duty on londay night; one of the
first wesk-ends in April but so fer es definite day I am not sure. I

Qs That vatch has been continuous sinee that time up until this past
Saturday night, is that right?
A. Yes, sir.

. vere you fully aware of the various phases of illsbter Forrestal:s

condl tlon?
A. I was not aware of anything that went on in therapy but I was informed
and from my own observation had what I thoupht wes e Birly zood
mov:ledge of his condition all the time.

) suicide ewer ccour Ho -you?
S - IE HarLs 1ulj oG currod to me ever sinos the man has besn there,.

Qe How did you regard him from that standpoint for ths first few days of
h_: ztay in the hosplual9 '
k. Vell, of course, -on the Pirst few days, it was much longer than the
flrbt few days, ou admission to the hospital he was under mlmost con=
tinuons sedation and constaat watch., «After a few days they wers able

to get screemed windows on the roeom and corpsmen were instructed to
stay with Mister Forrestal at all tmes and if they needed anythlng
from the nmurse or corpsman oun the cutside or from Dootor

and me thay went through ancther corpsman, didn!'t leave the room at
any time. Pollowlng that he was on sub-shock insulin therapy for a
pericd of something like three weeks, I believe, and the man was
obviczusly depressed and any ¥ime a man is depressed there is always
a consideration of suicide %o bo kept in minde

.
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10. ¢. ¥ow did you regard the prograss of his condition from' the time of

: :.ission to the hosuitel until the time that Dootor ° left
cown? .

A. T7ell, I thinlk 1t is Lest we put 1% this weay. From discussions with
Lootor » Loctor and Doctor and from the changes

i the orders whioh permitted ifister Forrestal to have mére Preedom
ol movement in that he could o into our bedroom and he_oould be in
roem alone without the gorpsman I presumed, I felt that improve-
i nt was going slony or those measures would not havetbeen put into
i ¢ Tect. So far as wmy pvrsonal dealing with Mister Forrestal on his
voipinal endry end at Lthe time he was on insulin therapy it was
wivays gulte difficult to tallt with Mister PForrestal, quite difficult |
eange ve nad been Instructsd to try to stay away from things that E
e on therapy and For a man like Mister lorrestal you couldn't very
(11 talk %o him about the floviers and boes bsceuse he was not
c:terested in them. I could ask guestions about his Navy life and tha
cort of thing but slways felt that would be getting into a field I
would net be in, the psychotherapeutic field, and for that reason
s say I found it difficult to "talk with him; would disocuss things,
vigaarily me, et his guestlioning butv as time wenl on thers was the
ﬁg réunity to maybe discuss other things. Don't lmow just when: it
vie, S bat when ilister ; in Tondon had that accident he talked
with me about thet. From time to time he would ask me questions
giont was the duty diffioult, was I working hard and so on and so
forth so that during the périod of time he was here in the hospital

=

¢ r'elt he was shoviayg convimually more interest in outside activities
wel, ss T osald, in the beglnning the way I looked a4t it I felt sure
+hings were golng onm in discussicn with Doctor probably I

didat Imow sboudt but vnich were 1ndlc"t;onu that the man was im- ]
sroving considerably.

11. . “wu did, however, from objective signs form some opinion of your own
tant he was lmprowving?
A. Yas, sir, 1 did, the mipht thet this happensd. Dootor i had

(ister Forrestal o o for a walk or maybe take him up 4o the tele-
ision on the eighteenth floor sad on Saturday twe times, onoce

clhunt quarter of eight T asked him if he would be interested in,going

u. to see the television and he said "jo, thank you, I think T will
iet 1% go." Then again at eleven o'clock or thereabouts I talked with

.. again. The television, striotly speaking, I think . is supposed

tw be closed arcund ten-thirty, but is somebtimes on a little later.

T §ocame up to go to bed some time before seleven I:aSked him

a_uin if he would be interested in going to the televm31on -and he

s"d “Uo, not tonipght.", but he made it sound like not tonlght but

: ~it near in the future 1 will go up with you.

|
|
i ecacouraged Doctor and me to see if we ogould possibly get
1

il = N Vs = o 2 :
i TR0 ping Loetor rvsence did you obserye anything that made you
iz hig privileges should be tantened up?

A. 9, ir, I didn't observe a thing.’

15. @+ Lid you discuss at any time his condition W1th Docto or

X}

\

Doctor
A, Daturday ncoan, ilay twenty-first, when I went! on watoh; saw Bootor

* in +the chow hall and Doodor 1ot ‘having icome off
Thursday and Priday nights was pleased that he had th “weT end free
a.:d said to me Yyou w111 have an easy time. of 1t,h i sbaal:

gaiig alony fine, "™
UOuLGT ' . had talked Wluh Ifis ter ForrestﬂlT n

WaS,

ALl e
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1. ¢. Daturday night, Leay tweuty-first when you went to bed how did you feel
ahreat 1Heter Forresimlts gondltient : =
“her I got up on towsr sixteen I talked with the corpsman who was on

He cold me that pi-ter Yorrestal had been resting off snd on
211 evening but that he 34ill hada't taken his medication. I told the
‘ corpsman that I felt possibly my coming to bed would have some bearing
ou whether lizter worrestal went to sleep or not and I thought he
probably world go %o bed and stay in bed after I came De A% no tinme
there Deen, in the past three weds, any hard and fast rule aebout
HMister Forrestal should take his sleepihg medication

» ther or not i
although it was always ordered, the reason being that sast sinoe I
Ant+ .1ike the

knew IAster Forrestal he had always complained that he

sexsation of the medioation and always wanted 4o try % sleep without
the medication. I viewed his taking or not taliing medlcatlon Just

, «l)iQer indication ¢f his gradusl improvement arnd sort oE i stepping-

ﬁ s toue bo further good health. wor that reason at no +time-did I ever
I iusist that Ligter lorrestal would take the nightly madioation buk

i O:oaumercus occasinus L knew that even though he tock his amytel he
il woula be up nmybe ouw or tw times during the night going into
bathroom or et least net sleeping. When I had the. duty onr
weduesday, the eighteentnh of lay, I went up about seven-thirty to make
my evening rounds. lilster Forrestal was asleep, he hadn't taken any
reudication and when I went up again to go tc bed in the neighborhood
of aleven-thirty he was still sleeping so that was proof enough for me
he was able %o sleep without talking nightly medicetion.-

A,
du LTy .

15, Qv vew you tell us a little more specifically your impression and what
ha ypened on the last night that you had the duty, wq1ah was Saturday,
vaz twenty-Lirst?

4. I neaticned previously that when I went up on tower. 51xtsen around
eleven the corpsman had mentionsd tha+t Mister Forrestalihsd not been
sleeping and then T also previowly mentionsed that I had discussion
with the corpsman at that time. I went in to ses HlsterﬂForrestal and
tlat wes the tine.I discussed again with him the 70551bi13ty of going

and seeing the television. ¥He implied not that night but in the

ire. I again reminded him if he were not sleeping and' could not

to gleep he should taule his medications, to which he snswered s

" Por the past, I think it wes the second of iay T would have o
the record to meke sure, since thad time the adjoining bathroom |
inte my room neg beeu left open from time to time. Tha+t partiou-

Jlie dght while we were talking xbout the television and his taking ths

setion hw said “Are you gelng 4o close the door™ and T ssid "Yes,

L8 cold and I doi't want to catch another cold. I had had

i gl SE L
@ old for e couple weaks previously and he laew about it and that was
veoooome of our subjecis of conversation from time to time and he ssid
ioor o perfectly alri ottt vy somethiing like that so I went into my room,
Py unﬁiecsed vent izto the bathroom, came back, read the newspaper
i g vinile and from hero on in I'm not sure of any ftimes. but T would
srérume that I pessibly weut o bed about eleven thir+ty. b wasnft
sleeping and although I realized that these lessening off -y g
on the patieat were & gart of the treatment in his road

e

rﬁﬂgly, at tlm@s i

civietlios are relased, \at some risks have +o- be taken, T dontt think
e b retoves the concern from the people who might be involved in
those risles.  fhis was somet ing that head been disoussed vith both
o) and Logtor Some njghts the.door would be

locwed, other aights the door would be closed, another nlght the .door
et
woulu be opened but on that particular night the door was olosad whan vy

Dl




wadd %o bed but as I wen lyisg in bed at one bWime I -hepard & ligtle

sort of thud and &idn't know whether the wind was coming through

Cister porrestel's vowe ond banging the door or venetian blinds
Loging ageinst the vindow but sunyhow I stayed awske just a short

:aricd of tiwe and wille I was avalee ister Forrestel wallked inmto

e roon, ssood in fro. of the window next to the bathroom door,
coked out for a nalf-zecond, turned arcund, went back through the

Cothroow into his roow and left the door open. I gdﬁ up and walked
roer beside the ovulwr ved so 1 could look inte +he room and Iister

surresvel vas lyins in his bed. I got back 1nto ths:bed again and
dien I stsrted dhinldayg that, well, I +4old him the door was supposed

tv.be closaed, he's got the door open, now should I gat up and close

Lt oor shouldnt't I. I rinally decided with the alr, sw1shing threugh

pad the bagpging of +he door I »rebably wouldn's geﬁ s sleep at all

unless I closed it s¢ I got up to cloge it and was standlng in front

o1 the batinoom door vith my back to the door- wh_ ““tHat time Was

coout three-querters shut, I vresume from the wind blowing it, and

just as I was reaching to the knob to close the door Mister Forrestal
who was evidently standing in the bathroom, I didnt't see him but we

had a few words. iHe said "Are you poing %o loock the,door™ amd I

zaid "Yes, because the wind is coming up and it will be banging and

it is getting cold herv in my room™ and he said "well," Itm not
re but somet ing like well, that's alright and Aghan 1 uald Hia vent 4

souw beer sleepiug?™ e said "Yes, off and on" and I+ ‘Hald again YvYou

L ster talke your medication you need the sleep, it will do you good™
. he said "Alrigh® ¥ will," I locked the duor, 1i% a cigarette and

vas standing there in the dark suoking the cigarette ahd thought -
vell, 1111 see 1if thore's someti:dng else in the paper I haven't read.

. turned the light on, put my white coat on ~ T use 1t as a sort of

Hethrobe - and St“lted out to the nursers desk +o get g drink of

Leter.  Just as + went by the pgalley Mister Forrestal and one of the
el psmen were staanding in the galley door. As T went out to the
«isk I vatohed him going back into his room with the dorpsman. I got
soodrink ol waler, cemwe back into my room, read the”paper for about

whres miagutes and got beck in bed. I didn't have- the slightest idea

vhat dime 1t was; didn't hear anytling else or waﬁn'% oonoerned about
noything else. The light in the galley went on a couple oy times but that' ¢
wod unusual and the next thing I knew was the corpsman;:

g in, awskensd me ard sazid thed Mister Forrestal SR was not
tweping, what should Le do about it. I said something like this -
wt Jdster Morrestal knew that he should talke his pills if he were

weible to aeles. without them and that the corpsman sheuld again re-

cxad bim tet the pllls were tusre end that he should take them 1f hs
felt he ovuldnt+t yo %o sleep by himself. At the same +time T +told the
curpsman to keen a close eye on uister Forrestal. I ‘don'+t know what
time that was but after all this happened and in talklnw with the

crrasman aad narse I think i+ was about one thlrty-flve or some thing |
like that when the corpsmen cams and: talked +to me..

&laep again beoquse the next tu;ng L1 reoall was, Mlss'

oL
q
&

1oom.“ I sat up in bed ond as I sat upfthe firs:
torough my mind was that he was wandering sround
gonewhere and I said Myhere £
vindew™ so I quickly got uj
hed been shocked avout this thing but you can 1m§gm

1 went out once fo the nursafs desk in. my white:¢§

time there wore numerous und sundry and many peopls
oi1icer-cf-the~Day, bLoctor ~and X had gone}
looked ocut the vindow and saw him down there and: then”

-t salled Toctor %0 tell him what had happe

hi»g@iley and
Cewent to the desk

I
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| _said “poes ihe Officer-of~the-Day lmow about:iit" -and I said
“g5, he has just been up here but now thet I have called you I will

co down to g 6o if hie has notified Admiral e

|
r \
| 7 L= .
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|
18, .. uhen you re@rod fer e wif Lt did you helieve that any closer
4 cestriection should be 8k6rclsed?
| e 1 M0l DL TGN L

¥ . tRE it weual for lLhstar Forrestal to get up during the night and to
.alk saround or was that an unusual happening on the xnight in

: cusstion? LE

“ A, ia the previous things I have said I hoped to convey the idea I i
¢ didn't think any of his activities that night were umasual in any re-
[

|

|

soecte I knew nizhits he had a capsule and slept, nights he had cap-
sules and didn'+t sleep, nights that he slept without anything. 1t
was not unusuel for him in the middle of the night to get up, walk
over inbo our room sud wellk back into his room. As amattser of fact,
om, well, +weo nights With Docfer . - I think and :6ne night I am
sure of with me, ilister Forrestal asked if he could obme over and
sleep in the empty bed in our room which we permittediand discussed
with Doctor »  Deekowr said "It is perfectly alright, the
wan is lomely and dependent and if you people doen't mind its' perfsot-
ly alright." On the ulghte that he didn'+t do that he‘would say on at
least two ocoasions wheu I had the duty, he would comgiintc my room,
. stand in the door ané walk back into. his own room. Other nlghts X
ltave heard him in the middle of thse night, three o!q.
horaing or something lile that, in the bathroomrand-
aething unmasuel, nothing different in the way ‘thet he
i o many previous cccasions.

ileither +ihe recorder nur the nembers of the board desired further +o

anaindn. {ais wiitness.

Mg Lo« Anforiied the vidtoess that lie was privileged to make any further
sin ' cm:ori:-kg naything releotiag to the subject matiter of the investiga-
tiow v i he thonght should Le a matter of reoord in counneotion therswith,

whicli nad not been fully breught out by the previous questlonlng.

the wii.wss made the Tollowilng statement;

jI thinl: | have mentioned before but would like to add again that I wes

¢ oomsci.ug of the ract that lilster Forrestal had not completely recoversd.

1 vas else conscivus of the fact if we expected any racoverijhatSOSVﬁr

the only way it would s brought about would be by gradual relaxation of
the resirictions under which the patieut had been originally. subJEoted In
all depressed peonls there is that chance +that has to be taken. I+% doesn't
leave s lot of people wvery happy about it but at the sams: ﬁlmerﬁf is the
only tiing that cau be done I fesl in allowing the paﬁlent o' gradually re~
turn to a previous bether state of well being.

Weither +the recorder unor the nenbers of the board desired further %0 examine
this wit..csS.

The wituness said that he had nothing further +to state...

The witness was duly warnad and withdrew. . :

14 vwitness was called, entered, was duly sworn, and was®

subject . whiter ol tihe investigatlon.
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“rambe wvour none, roni. aad preseat station of duty.
, uroiain, Ledieal Corps, U. S. Havel Regerwve, wmy
1 - 71. 3 "
ahmtion 48 . B. saval dospital, Bethesda, MHaryland. I

.. tat are wvour duties at the Kaval Hospital? -
J. To@an ass qt&ﬂu chief of the Ppsychiatric Service.
-. 231l you give & resumd of your qualifications as a psychiatrist?
. L graduated from Tufts College iledical School in nineteen twenty,.
lLuO“ﬂed at Boston ity Hospital., During the succseding twenty-
nine years @ have spent a major portion of thet time in the active
aractice of psychiatry. Among other positions which'I hawve held are
shysician in tharge cf' the Philadelphiae ljospital fér Mental Dissases
ullnlcal ractor of the Pollk State School in polk, Pennsylvanna,
Cpdical irsetor of Hulbrook Sanitorium, (reens Farms, Conngchiocutdb;
U. 3. Havy from &Lpril forty-two to August forty-six at whioh‘time i
ehurngd to the private practice of psychiatry in Wesipordt, LOQnecti»
cut, and returned to temporary active duty in the Navy September tenth,
aineteen forty—~elght. I am a liember of the American Psychiatriec
issociation; the igw York Society for Cliniecal psychiatry; the
Jonnectiout Psyciiatric Society; for the past approximately fif teen
years I have bee.. an iunstrustor in psychiatry a t the llege of
’ysiciaus and Surgeons at Columbia University, New Yoyk Clty. 1 am
Jqultlnb nsychietrist to the Horwalle Hospital, Nor 1k, Connectiouth
race Wew Ilaven Hospital, Hew «aven, Connectiout; Stnmford Hall in
?nforc, Comectiount; on military leave rrom the indicated hospital
.9901ntwents and & t the present time I am alsc sssistant Clinicesl
rofessor of Psychiatry at Georgetown University. L was also forwsrly
on the teaching staff at ths jledical School at Yale..
ge -tptaln, will you ples 5e tell the board what you lmow. relatﬂve to the
reatment of the late :'ister jorrestal?
di, ddmaps I sliowld delﬂ by saying thot the treatment was direoted by
ve.ptain i wiwo 1s the ohief of the neuropsychlat”10 serv1o¥

a. O

wud my role was supportive to his therapeutic endeavors and consultiv
Ltoany. tine wheu it woes deemed necessary or advisable, I firs® met
‘izter lorrestal on the day of uhis admission to the hospital which, I
bolieve, was April second and subsequently sew him almost daily until
Ay elghteenth at which #ime I left on suthorized ledwe and didntt
return until after nis demise., Through Doctor and through my
2ily conversation with the patient I aoquired some degree of
Jamﬂllarltj with the enotional state which was respon51ble for his
hospitalization. I found him to be a wvery cooperaﬁlve patient and at
a1l times guite willing %o accept opinions oonceraning his illness and
1 expressed willingness on lils part to avail himsslf’of all the
wonefits widch might bs derived from his hospitaliZatibn here and the
syehotherapautic thernoy which might be instituted. -In the nature
nr our hancling of his psychotherapeutic therapy it was-an. arrangemnent
L rEween Logtor and myself that he would uompletely control all
wne therapeutic messures lthou ;i 1 can sincerely. state: that .we com-
sered oplalons almest daily, partlcular v in regard to the behavior
ranetions of the patieal and their lmport. Inasmuich &8 it is con-
Liered good psychintris practice o avoid confliotion and oonfusion
-4 treatment, espaciuvll: as it pertains to the interpretation of
_ ychodynamics, that this rests entirely in the hardds of one indi-
“Guale 55 a result of this arranzement my discussions with Mister
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vorrestal were oxn a lasgs wersonal lsvel than wouldkacdﬁhg from
therapeutic endeavors. iowever, these conversations. hdd's degree of
intimacy and resulted in the establishment of a rappor¥ with Mister
iorrestal that I alwa;s Znterpreted as bveing friendly end comfortable.
e tellked of many divorse matiters that had only & cagual relation-
shis B0 his illness as l.e was & man who not only was mentelly alert
ort continued %o maintain aun active interest in all current matters
o a level compatible with his Lroad public service snd wide sxperience,
Tha5e conversations ran a jgamut from s discussion,ofﬁmaﬁtersrof purely
lecel interest to various philosophies and ruminetions thet touched
on the behavior patierns of all people under va*mousfoircumsuances -of
stregs and his astuteness and acumen were such that hi commsnts ‘and
disccurses were pregnant with comprehensive smwnlfloanca. As indi-
cated previously, the matter of discussion of the more intimats
aso9chs of his personal problems was left for his interviews with
i LDouvtor This H.ster Jorrestal snd I both understcod; that
t“ns was the arrengenent sand for thad reason our “endency was to stay
& s G dlsturblLU subjects. iy interviews with him usuelly would
% from fif teen or <wenty minutes to perheps an hour. In evaluating
e course of his illuess as I observed it he apparently was showing
£ . o coutinuous improvemcnt vith moderate fluctuations whith were not
; atible with the “ywe of emotional disturbance which he showed.
s eseutely sware of nis depressed state of mind and s+ +imes
worted intersrstatioan ol his oun reaction to his predicament and

- dtv hawvs led up to 4t although he not infre-
; 1.7 .; tisugter. They were always of vague
—specitic coaarscter and had o do with matters which had
~ % been of paramcunt interest to him, namely, the safety of the
G VY. Loy wliies he cupressed uneasiness about the future pos-

sit1lidties aud windered wviwther or not psople were as alert to these

; potuntislities as they should be., Each time he would rsassure him-
i self by such ﬂSSGTtlolS 2s, "I really have no uneasiness abou+t the

!
i
i
|

l ruture of the country, I am certain that that is assured. But the
! travail might be easier if people perhaps were more concerned about
: fu.0 of thess tlings." Ve $alled frequently of his recovery and the

Joosible chonge in Juis patderu o»f living whieh would be possible with

cou o ledsure and grester oppor tunity for diversification of interess
auu & release froi the tremoendous pressure which his duties had
ipwsed on him over the preceding elght or nine years. He himself
orvered the opinion that he should have sensed that his burden had
beconme too heavy many months previously and should have done something
vo correct it. le regretted that he hadn!'t done so. In01dentally, he,
oL ndver..\l occesions in connection with this type of thinking had

ci'tvored the opinion that all men highly placed in public 1ifs should
i be ore goncerned about their anotloral health and sven perhaps come
B to « better understanding of the benefits which would resuls from a

- 2rofound lmowledge of the emotional concomitant of somtinuous
; tewion and sirain. Inaswuch as he was a man who. suffered withia
de »ression and an interpredation of his own prediocament 'hrough de=-
pregsive eyes the matter of his recovery or non-recové
cussed, even 1nclud1ng self destructlon. He, .

onl: - agreed but Prequently volunneared that he was- certai
woull be able to reach & level of adjustment which woul rlng him

gre. ber happiness, sspecially through more. intimate oontdots with his
Tar 117 Tronm whoul he had fell somewhat separated because8f ithe pressurs

|

|

) tnc future possibilities as thsv affeoted him Were nebw
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vorlk and also becsuse ol the opportunities for lsss hurried and
cugtructive eadesvors wiich his uew fresdom would permit. He was.
UﬁﬁLVGlV interesied in sports aud had participated in them to a ocon-
igerable extent when he was younger, following the various sporting
uv@ntu, not deeply but eunough to be fully informed about them. XHe
vwiis interested in nistory, GSQGCIElly, and enjoyed disocussions that
sartained to historical backgrounds of various situations from ths
“iae of alexander the Grea’t on up to the present and often wove a very
iatoresting course into the fabriec of his oconversatlon pertaining to
4mese historical and philosophical backgrounds and would draw com-
ssrigons and enalopgiss with more recent happenings. To' cover the
vuther intime®e conversations which ocourred almost dally for- six weaksg
vwuld run the gamut of all interesting subjects that.a;man_of his
crudition and vackground could bring into a conversation. I . was
more often the listener than the spemker. He did somekreadlng but
aclmowledged that he found it rather trying and tiresoms.to gttempt
reading material of any vrofuadity. He was & men’ of; Simple tdstes
so that repeated inquirises es to things which mlght_make him comfor -
st le or more contented or happler in his present hospltalization were
Woually met with the resoonse that he deeply appreociated our efforts
bes helpful and rather than ol'fer a direct rejsotlon he would usually
weell, perhans © vill 4ry it a little later." He frequently
onasented on the pleasaut relations he had with gll the psople hers
.G was unstinting in his praise of ' the. personnel the paysical
properties of the hospital and everything pertalnlng_tqwlt. My ob=~
servations of his resctions during the period ihdicated would be
that of 8 man who was experiencing a depressive episode which sven
iy itself, in the absence of urganio findings, would be self-limited.
He was well preserved physically for his ysars, having a very youthful
way of handling limself in all spheres and he was a very acute person
intellectually. He was a man of unfailing graciousness in his reaction
o even small favors and in spite of a rather austere exterior he wad
quite aocessible for the discussion of his problems :and it was very
sasy to feel the warmth of his friendliness in any disou551ons wi th
him. Theraveutically, perhaps, I should indicate thaﬁfthe first weak !
he was rather heavily sedated and this was followsd by.a period of
treatment by sub-shock insulin. it night he did receive sedation. A%
firgt thils was mandatory but he asccepted it without protest and later
L. was wmede more opticinl as he seemed to improve and there were
cocasions when ne expresged the opimion that he felt he oould slesp
quite well without sedation and would do go. If +this was not the
sass he would be jiven a medication a little later. 'Hé“had very
fow visitors becsuse of the nature of his illness and the restraints
which were imposed on visiting for therapeutic reasons., He acocepted
Cwze limitations witheut protest end, in faoh, was not partlcularly
ious to have visitors until he himself felt in a better moocd for
coiug them.  Physieally, 1dis condition seemed o 1mpr0ve, nanifestaed
£ly by his zain in weight which, althoupgh not remarksble,. was at
5% a thrust in a favorable directiom. I believe hegained:sbout
vive pounds from the time of his admission bu+t ‘thig: -eplacedwonly a
svritlon of about twenty pounds which he had lost previ usly.
pvbuontary eodings were includad to hasten the reoo ‘
ucw\nt. At no Lime did I ever hear him express any~

=

aectroy himself. In regard to the evaluatlon of
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| condition it wes iundicated by his externalization and ability to
express confidence in his return to health thaﬁfh' ondition could
be ocnsidersed as showiny the usual type of improve expected in
this type of illness. There is an unevenness about‘the recovery .
from depressed situations so that there were times when he was less
animated than at other <imes but the depth of the depression, as
easured by his responsiveness to external stimuli of all types r
f slearly incdicated iiat he was following the courge which is seen i
in depressions wiieh are lifelay or recovering. In keeping vrith what
is considered to be iutelligent psychiatric measures his privilegss
were extended im asuvceordance with what seemed to be his ability to
.andie them. [t has Leen consigtently the andeavor‘ol anlightened
ttitades in the treataent of mental i1llness to offer them all

uacessary encouragouent to believe they will again be able to 1dent1fﬂ

nemselves with soclaty. Perpetual isolation on a very restricted
aovery deleterious result even ia a self-limited

% conslidered that a mm tlent undergoing this

ool ol el

C3E 0l deareggilionl

LV
Lpae @l Ak ibeel is already the victim of overwhelming
sewlliagl s o gEena il uacy, inferiority and dGJ@Otlon- The

Sogivertan o # the utilizetion oi' eny measures which would
aelp w porsuade hiim that this was nottrue., lLatirely in keeping wit]
sach an interprete tion of the therapeutic needs of the patient suf-

rering from this type of illness hlstar Forrestalrts’ s illeges wWers
extended. This had been instituted, I believe, by as much as +thres
woel before his death and he hendled tho a 0r1v116ges very well
conflorning euntirely +tu the limitations and yet to a con81derable
cutent embraciug the ~nlarged opoortunities for sooislization. i
saw aothing iw hig beimvior aer <1id I deteet anything in his convsrsar
i 1
|

e —

wons at any tlae whieh would have made it consistent to reverse the
Lerapeutic sudeavor. Inasmuchas the illness 1s characterized to =

songidernhle extent by self-deprecatiuyg interpretations and becauss

o1 the moral qualit) o ifister porrestalts make-up it would be vary
<ifficult for him f¢ lis and he was confronted at relatively frequent
satervais with o full cvaluation of the potentials of his illness so
Loat even hed we failed %o be acutsely coascious of over-extending his
awvilepes % 1S opiiiion that he would have constricted them of his
v veligion. L0 1 vere o offer an opinion regerding his ultimate ]

% 1 ovould consirns LT s o very impulsive gesture which could not
~.ve been predictes by any neans which he revsaled either in his con—’
|

il
1
I
i

wiiEs Bleeis | ot s EeRElwarer, I ”ould base this opiniom not only on uy
swil ebservatien but ;y discussion with the people who were with him
vior o e tiae of his impulsive acth.

anh

Examidcc by the board:

2w .o puctor, wers wou in agreemsant with the general prineciples of *herapy
cad their mede of spplicsation in this case?

RN, gimw.

Wl * o SlEsR I valicewe you stated thet there had been no attempts
#4 self-dastruction to your knowledge by the patlent'ln questlon

_ witile a patient at this bosgntal? ;

il A. Yos, Sir.

7+ @+ Tven though there hiad been such a ttempls is it"sfilfrconéi stent with
ood psychiatric practice to withdraw restriotions as the petient
rogresged in recovery?
i Lo.s, indeEty - gaf,

“FE-




That is your opimicn iu plecing a patient with sulcidal tendsncies

sbove the 3
from such pomition?

your quastion would invite a long dissertation on all potentials of
suicide. I have seen patients who hang themselves: from door lmobs
and found i+ necessary to hold their knees up fromfﬁha floor while
they were docing i%t. I have known of an instance where a patient
cut her throat whils the nurse was sitiing by, her.‘ed rsadlng to
her so that self-destruction is a foros that ig’ 80 imipelling that
it is beyond the ability of the normal mind to ocomprehend its depth
snd intensity. The desire to die under those circumstances as I
nve witnessed it is only comparable to the desire of a normal
healthy person He live and if you could roeverse :
vherein a healthy, normal wman is threatened wif
and reverse that to the point where. you could acng
desiring to die exercising the seme force and inte
it will, in a small way, measure the power ‘behind-
S0 far as being above the ground floor is concerned
hospitals thay keen their most disturbed and suicidal .patients on
the top floor whether it -be ten, fif teen or thirty ories above the
bround but in all decency and respsct for the prospe s of the
patient with & self-destruction illuess they erect certein safe-
buards which are assumed Lo be adequate. Ihose meds_res were T aken
with Iister Forrestal whewn they were positively. ind
release of the stringency of those mechanical andrp
were lessened as he inproved. This consisted: mostl
a little greater movonent about the floor but not muoh beycnd tha €.

) T the ground whero he may be in & position to fAll or o jump

ﬁyﬁbf purposs

Jin many

¥eidiw: the recorder nor the members of {the board desired furﬁher to
sexamine © his withess.

the beo. yd informed the witness that he was privileged to make any further

g ) i wk
statcm;\t covering auythia: reloating to the subject matter of the investi-
sation Leoh he fhought should e g matbter of record in comnection therewith,
widd eh L;g not been fully brougirt out by the previous questioning.

m

2 vivaess said that he had notiiing further to stete.
@ vh o538 -was duly warned and withdrew,

o 1 o 3 ~ a

S .« thew, at 4;50 p.m., adjourmed until 9:00 a.m., tomorrow, Hay 29,

THRD DAY

HATIONAL NAVAL WMEDICAL CENTER
BETHESBA, M&RYLAND.

wrm“LsnAY, LAY 25, 19&9.

The board mat at §:10 a.m.

Present; 7 | —
Captain . #edical Corps, U. S. Navy (Ré; Aotive,
Senior ember; S Sl el
Captain y tiedical Cerps, U, S. .Mavy,-
Captain s, liedical Corps, U.; 5. Havy,
Commander R ¥eadical GOrps, U. S.‘
Lieutenant Commander
and -
Lel Cenne , -ledical Serviece gorps,
Lirg. ¢iwilian, revorter.
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Tha reécord of proceedings of the second day of the trisl wes read and

fapprov:ﬁu

. _:_;ubjegt

Ko Uit sges not otherwise comnected with the investigation were present.
iowiteens was called, entered, wes duly sworn, and was informed of +the
nather of the investigation,

Bxenmine? by the recorder:

1. \.sztate your name, rate end pressnt stetion.
A hospitelmen second, U. S. Wavy. I am atiached to

B iha Naval Medical School Blood'Chemistry Department.

2. Q.%het were your duties on the night of Mey 21, 19L97
A.T was on laboratory watch that night.

3. Q-l.ould you please tell the board all you kmow about what happened on
the night of iay twenty-first in relation to the death of the late
.dster Ferrestel?

vas sitting in the wateh room reading a magszine that nlght when
it hearr 2 loud crash which came like across the passageway which is
~he Department of Bacteriology. Uy first thoughts were that s large

wove or oven in that room had fell down %o the floor. I ran in to
~ﬁvest1gats what the nolse was, looked around the laboratory,

idn't see anything wrong; don't lmow what prompted mﬁ just happened
to look out the window overlooking the ledge and. saw . something. white
laying out there; couldn't see very well, opened win. and looked
out end saw & man's body lying there. Immediately X ran beck to the
watech room, woke up other man on wetch, he was Elesplng. I called
“ow Information Desk reported I found a man's body and“to come up to
1LiE passageway opposite three seventy-three. I ran bavk into
sucteriology. I clembed out the window, felt the man's wrist to see
i" there was any pulse bheating; I dldn't feel any, This other man
o wateh came. I told him to wake up the Chief. who.
ttd notify him whet happened. ¥hen I was out on the.
the stretcher coming up from the main floor. Ilran 3. I was

dge I heerd

rurning all ‘the time, and showed them where the body was.and there
wies & doetor and somo attendents. The deoctor climbad: out ‘the window
#7 made his examination end that's gll T had. to do with it.

Examined by the board:

L. Q.what time wss that? .
A.The time that I called the Information desk was zero ene b ! Thet
was the exact time which I called the Information Desk, There wers
two windews; the window from which I Tiret discovered the body was
ucscreened. It kept falling down. When I went to alimb out the

window I used the opposite window and pushed out the screen that™
way. I was there most of the time the dootor was exa ning him and
can say that the body was not moved in any way o

5. Q.%o your knowledge, were you the first one to soe
A.Sc far as I know, sir, yes, sir I was. When I o
Desk they acted like I wag the first one who oal th

soem to lmow anything about it previous to my call,_g.
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vihen they brought the body in. Loctor cut off his pajamas,

¢ lald them aside witi o teg on them marked "pleass Save!. Dootor

“ould you plesse dencrile in detail the condition of the bedy as you
Pirst saw 1t
+t wag & little darl, couldn't see very well, but could sse thet ther
mach balow the right
_wez; Tight leg seemad 0 be straight out in a naturel positicon, left |
e laving over 14 aud extendiin, one to two feet below the rlght leg,
. could gse that he hﬁa
: and that's all. He was
iaying face down. At the time I didn't notice +the bathrobe; I
couldn't see that well to notice it. Remember seeingisomething there
but didn't lmow 1% was a bathrobe cord or was around the man's néck.
First I lmew was when the doctor came up and he had g flashlight and
siiined the light on the man's head; that's the first I saw of the
bathrobe cord. W%hen the doector shone the light you“oould See one end
1:as tled around his neck and other end extended over toward the left
2art of his head. It was not broken in any way end 'didn't seem %o bs
tied on to anything. I looked to see whether hae had fried +to hang him
a0 se8 whether a siece of cord had broken off. It was all in one
plece except it was tied around his neck. I notioced his watch;
didn'+4 notice whether it was worldng or not but didan"t think $o. see
vhethsr it was running or not; didn't think about it &t the time. His
¢ft arm was extended out to the 51d6 and thatts how T tried fo talke
his pulse.

8l

wn

you lmow the nawe eff whe doctor who appearsd on +he scene?
first deetor who agpsared ou #he scene was Doctor il
‘clieve he was tne Junior Cfficer-of«the-Day thet night., The dootor
~out® bring a flashlight. I3 was brought up, I believe, by a
sman after ihe dector arrived, I am not sure of that. I was
ide o1 tne ledge a.d dida't see what was going on-insids,

ou tell us auything more about the articles of clothing which
v oon the body? :
il I noted that wyms ou the Lody was pajama tops and bottoms; didn'+
tice anything particular about them. I went down to the . MOr gue
cugn the body was brought to the morgue. The laborabory watch
-wubles as morgue watch after fen o!'clock and I was downt in the morgue

dwere was no'bagroom wateh and so I wrapped the pajamas in a sheet

cut the cord off while cutting off his pajames snd as far

55 1 know he teolr that with hin.

Geowuo Unls bathrobe cord tisht or loose about his neck?

orere he ¢uxk

o) A

pussageway. I heard the ele vator and ran out. ' hat

h-l

now baal i o'l o ﬂ:&O?-J hev iight it was but Doctor
_L

£ it of'f, he tried 4o insar+t his fingers in between +n
Loaits omecly; don'g loaovs loose it wag.

3

o long did you stay a4 +the scene?
was at the scene I'rom L]C Lmne i dluuovered 5 untll'after the

.usre 10 come; They vere turnluu down the opposiﬁs an’

loft the body efter finding it

B35
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W I ofg

aovi long was tho vody on the roof bhefore it was moved to the morgue?
i not sure of that time; I believe it was somewhere bsetween four
witd four-thirty. ‘they were waiting for photographers:and also
sdmirals and and it was -af ter:they geve
sermission $hat the body was moved. - L B ‘

“hat was the approximate time? Would you say one or “twd hours?

I believe = I coulda't say for. certaln, but I believe it. would be
about t wo hours or two end a half hours. The body was logged in the
cwrgue. I logeed it in the morgua. .

e recorder nor tho menbers of the board desired furthsr 4o examins |

5.8
wini inforaed the witness et he was privileged to malke.any further

hs e tene.. i covering anytning releting to the subject mather. ol the investi-
ioation radch he thought should be matter of record in conneoﬁlon therewi th,
qwnloh tad act been fully brought out by the previous qusstlop;ng.
F -

! e \ . .
EThe wiitnsss sald thwt e had nothing further to s tate.

The wi<...58 wag duly warned and withdrow.

\
!

“Examined by +he recorder:

I
il .
I 3
- M.
l
2. o.
5. Q.
Ao
[J_,'.- {3 .
A
e
1“-.
v Q.
| B
7. "
P A
8. 1.t
B oy
i Fie

i, Uit

i vitness was called, eugered, was duly sworn, snd was 1nformed of the
subject :satter of the investigation.

g-Fhte yous Bilae, rank and present station.
ientenant junlor grade, 'iledical Service orps,
gy, (. Bl EavaL Zogpital, Wational liavel iledical Center,

aat were your duties on the nl it of ilay twenty-first?
L rlabtenance vateh Ufficaer.

puring the time that you were on duty did you have. ocoa81on to 5 eeo
the body of the late James V. Forrestal?
I dhds

buw2r what circumstances?
~wng laying oun the projection roof of +the thirg deck opposlte room
ree elghty-four. ' .

Mid you algo have occasion to see that body after it was removed from
the deck?
I

Vhere was tha 47
Lz the morgue,

©. et tlae did pou hevs occasion to see anyone remove & bathrobs
co - from the body? . B

-t happened wse that cord after it was removed frcm ﬁhe hody?
I kept it in my custody, locked it in the Offlcer-jf
and turned it over to Lisutenant

% 6m

|
|
l
\




Ba . & ELOW fou o cord; eaun you identify it?

it is the cord.

10, . L& &t L3 the sawme cendi don which you reesivéd i1l

Bls A8 duSte
hrobs cord takean from Lhe body of the deosased was presented to the

1ha“e beoing no objecticn, 1t was: so ‘feceived. A
15 appended marked RExhibit L. :

The oo
board as en exhibit.
dsscription of the cord

Exemiuned by the board;

11, ¢. Could you tell the degree of tightmness of this cord around

\_\'l
“dister sorrestal’'s neck?
g 1L was taut, Captain, sir.

12. 2. “ho gave you the cords

T T owouldn't say for surse, Captuln, I think Dootor . but I
don't kmow: sither he or one of the morgue attendanis; they were

vn the opposite cide from vhere I was standing. \

e 2 reocorder nor the wmenbers of the board desired further +o
UXin i... this witness. "
e L.ord infomaed the witness that he was privileged to mgXe any further
state wut covering anything relating to the subjeot matteriof: the invegti-

gativa vidch he thought should be a matter of record in coffedtion there-

vwAith, -niich had not been fully brought out by the previous Questlorlng.

The vitnags said tha 4 he had nothing further ‘e s tate.
Tae 1itess was duly warned and withdrew.

A wilo w8 was called, entored, wes cduly gworn aid was informsd of +the

subject matter of the investigation.

Ixeaii.wed by the recorder:

1. §. state your aame, real end pregent duty stetiod.

e » nospitalwen chief, . 5. Havy, MNawal kiedical
Sehool. |
2, - et were your duties on the night of May twentwalrst?
sy had the iaster-at-arms duty, Waval Hedical Schooly -

o the events
regards %o the

3+ Q. “jould you please tell the board all you know relativ
vihich took place on the nipht of Iay twenty—flrst
death of the late James V. Forrestal? .
. I was awakened about two otolock by tha t Mister
rorrestal had died amd I got up and went cut to-whe was .and
the Officer-of-the-Day of iedical School and Offiosr bffﬁhe;bay
of tHe Hospitel was There. Everything seemed ﬁo'be under oo trol
and about an hour later I went back %o bed. o]

beo
2

L. . vhat did you see and what did you do?
A. L saw the body lying there and I 'didn't do anythi

..5’7...




E. . pdte was The Lady? - Rt

A, ot was layin; on the ledge Just outside the Bacteriology: Media room.
Neither the recorder nor the nembers of the board desired further to !
exaimine this witness.

The boo informed the witness the vt he was privileged to malke any further |

statoiw.it covering anything relating to the subjeot matter of +the investi- |

gatica Sich e Fhought ghould be & metter of recerd in conmdctian There-
"ich had not besen fully brought out by the previocus guestiocaing.

e

Tha witness said thst e bad nothing further +o s tate.

The witness was duly warned mnd withdrew.

The co.rd then, at 11:55 a.m., took a recess until 1:15 p.m., at which
time it reconvensd. :

Pregent; 4ll the members, the recordsr, and the r eporter,
e .

o vilt:ss365 not otherwise comiscted with the 1nvest1gatlon-were present.

The tastimony oif tie folloving two wituesses was taken out'bf chrbnological
sequencs because ous of the witnesses was required to be absent at a later

dateﬂ

A witriees was called, entered, was duly sworn, and was infofmed of the
subject wvatter of the investigation.

Bxawined by the recorder:
L. §. State your neme, rank and present station.

e Rear Admiral, iledical Corps, U+ S . Navy; Medical
“LIficer in Command, U. 3. Maval Hospital, Bethesda, Maryland.

Al | e SEe . as Somanding Gfficer of the U. S. Naval Hospital
#hat was your commection with the hendling of Mister Forrestalts
case?

Av 2 wag sware that he wus golng to be admitted on April seocond of this

year, the afterpee@n of the sedomd of-Rprii.,

Js Qe -t that dime, Admiral, did you leave? ,
A, .0, sir, I was detached Sunday, April third, and lef+t here at three

Jeile, chaciced out witi the Ufficer-of-the- -Dey the morning of April

Litdrd,
L. . Fmd otiie did sew reduing
s, o returnsd Fricay, Aapril fiftesnth.
Ba .. w Thet e omowiald e Tl 66 bodFE 3 your conneoction w1th
Jister jorrestalls cass, 1if any?

A+ .2ll, I was in coustant contact. LCaptain L thé Medical
ufficer in charge, kept me daily informed about his progress and
his condition and on numerous occcaslions, on two 000351ons, I was
up with the Defenss Secrstary, jlister fo) ;
also with President . when he was out to v1sit Wk
daily was on the floor bu+t not in the room with Ml“ﬁﬁb anrest&l.

" .




Examined by the board;

fi: 0 et éare your rféaliags iln paperd tw Lhe type of hapdling and

crostent Jlster eorraestal rcchvod during the period after your
rotura and TO;quPb corsuand of thie hospital?

A, L Jeal that ‘dster porrestal had nothing bud. the best of care; that
g . imwe all the confidence in the world in the psychiatrie staff of
itiiig hospital end I ieel that the statement that Captain hes

cade oublicly is what he Welieves and I believe that Mister Forrestal

|

¥ :

’ ;.@ as good care asg e would have received in any 1nst1tut10n.
i ,\. .

iz recorder nor the niembers ¢i' the boqrd desired ;urther to sxamlps

BSOS . ) !
: = 5 S Ehaﬁ he was privileged to make any furthsr
st . sovering saythiny relating te the subject matter of the iavestige~
a matber of record in connection therewlth,
¢ vut by the previocus guestioning.

gt v - nd theu kvt shoula
’
t,

el = . el | e Bl dus

058 said that he had neothing further o state.

The wituess was duly warned and withdrew.

!A vatnes.; vms ealled, entored, wag duly sworn, and was informed of the
Iy 0 . o
Surteet L HEer of Ehe Hawes e Flev.

o

=
£

Toxcamined ihe recorder:

1. Q. Tlote your name, rani and present station of duty.

4 A, , Captein, Medicul Corps, . $s Na vy,
Imecutive Officer, U- S. Haval Hospital, Hational Naval Nedical
santer, Bethesda, L.arylaad.

?. Qe wagtEin would you state what your specific duties were
| Bedlwegen the periods of 4pril third end April fifteenthy

A, L.ving the p riod d4pril third to fif teenth I was acting Commanding
goticer of 4he ¥, 3. mvdil Hospital, Bethesda, Harylend.. ..

e Commanding (fficer during tha+t period wha+® was.§our comneotion
the handling of !jister Forrestal's ocase? n == I
4, L3 Cormanding Officer during tha+t period my conneotionimith the

hencling of iister porrestal’'s case was as outlined,ingﬁhe'ﬁanual
or the jedicnl Depastment for Vopmanding (Opficert's responsibilities
ci: wll ceses in the Lospital. A '

]

Bixamined "y the board:

6. 2 7L wre your feelings in regard B the pethod o6f the hesdling and
cac¢ in Mizter Forrestalis case? ’

a. iicter worrestal had been pliced under the direct - oharps. of the Chief
oi the Heuropsychiatric service of the Waval Hospital and“placad in
& voom on the sixteenth 1loor of the main building. whmoh had been
sesured by sereoning all vdusdows aud the placing of =a spec¢al twenty-
fcur hour wateh om hic case. In addition, a medical offiocer was as-
i ued fo be present duriung the evening hours on the sams floor and
Sl&u)lﬂﬁ in the adjsining room to the patient., AlL lmown preoautlons
were exercised and compétent personnel were constanﬁly"n touch with
hin., I was fully satisfied during the period tha '
being done for the welfare and protection of the,

feither the recorder nor the memovers of the board desired further fo examine

this wituess,
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1.

RSN

Ixan
i
L

Lie

A

5.

TDG vituass said thet he had nothing further to state.
The witl.wss was duly warned a=nd wilthdrew,.

YW witness was called, entered,
ng $ter of the investigation.

A. . was the intern on watch at the ddmission Desk.
o suld you please tell the board the events relative o the death

;LB dhe time that ister rorrestal fell I wes making a phone call on

Bxamined by the recorder;

was duly sworn, and was infofméd,of the subjecﬁ

. Ttate your name, rank and present station.
N ieutenant junior grade, Medical Corps
suorve, Us S. »aval Deserve, iational Havael iledical Center,
cethesda, -arylaad. -
vaat were your gpecific duties on the night of May

Y
ALEL

‘ SRy 2

centy-firste

Jﬂ the late James V. porrestal?

ome other busiuess coucerniiy another admission that came in that
aieht and the Cihef of the Day came into the admission room quite |
~oiteated and seid “Giut somebody had fallen out of the tower and would
i come immediately? I gawve the phone to somecne slse and went with
wim and we took a stretcher up to the third floor to:the room just
inside where he had fallen. I was called et twslve_"nutes of two
and we errived there at nbout five minutes of two,. ,delay being
accounted for by a mistake in direction. We didn'% go to the right
roem &t first and when I got there 1 saw liister Forrestal's ocondition
¢ checked his vitanl signs and they were absent, and noted his

b N
which, @t thot time seemed incompetible with lefe and |[Z4

L oromnounced ndnm dead %t that time. The Officer-of-the-Day was
slled et that time aud I Demediatsly had g bed-check mede of the
crper and his absewnce, Lthat is Liister Forrestal's shsence, was
.oveds  The Ifficer-of-the-Day, Dootor , arrived "at two o'clock
il noted lfister Forrestal's condition and he and Doctor
o was thie other jatera on watoll at that Himoe at thqudmission Dask |
ci to perXoma the dufies of notification and Doctor- ~ ordered
to stay by the body until further notification. I did so. The
vy photograshers arrived at three fiftesn and finished thelr work
;ﬁ:;weo t\eﬂyy—'ﬂve and then when Admirals ; . and
cone arrivad, don't lzwny exactly whet time it was, efter they had
e Jistcr Forregtal sawmiral ordered me Ho have the body
oved dovn: to the mergue which Loctor and I did together
usilg one of the Aduission Desk stretchers, at which tims the
coroneor saw the body and made his examination and Mlster Forrestal

vus placed in the morgue. I believe I was through atithat time.

insd by the board;

. _id you ideudii'y the body as that of Uister Forrestal or do you
aew how and wiie identified the body as ‘that of Migter Rorrestal?
didntt identify the body as that of Mister Forrestal until he
vas in the morgue when I tidnk thet I could recognize“him, not from -
over having seen him before but from the picturesg 1n;thejnswspapers;
1 cdon't kmow who made the definite identifioation of 4h fody.,.Thef
only other identification was that his room was amnty wenifound out
from the bed-~check immediately at two orolock “that mornlng or, bhere-
abontse o

G- L4d you ranovs any of the olothing or anyhing A¥HAcHbd 45 Hiates




9. 3. Lo you lknow who did remove 1%%7
4. o, 8ir, I dom't. It was done- in the morgue in my presenoe but I
don't remember who the versca was who édid 1%.
10,0, _+d the coroner ianstruct one oi the persons present to remove the
2 .
5 5, osir, he dastructed ther hev: o remcve 1t
Ll el did e Rkl Sian?
4. e told them tc cut opposite the knot, the back part, in order to
preserve the integrity of the knot. ' :
12-& Luctor, did you test how tight that sash was?
B, Y&, -T-dids =T coyddl 1qeert one filnger betwsen the: sash and neck.
~ithout any difficulty.
a3, Cou don'v thinlk, Then, 14 weas ight snough to prevent the petient
Jron breathiugg?
S Ba L8 S L aeSa e
1eG. Zun you give the exact time that you proumounced Migter Forrestal
dead? L ;
A act time Lo vdthin a nmimate, sir; one fifty-five,
LHsay ; you called tower sixteen were they aware that
sher orrestel wis absont?
o ddn'h eall tower sisteen; I ordered it done by ouns of the
.psmen; ordered then W btelephone each ward in the tower and make
vn dmmediate bed-check; I didn't do it myself, sir, because I felt
Cthat my presence was more reguired at the mants.side ‘because at that
Time we were not sure that he was beyond repair,
18.ge Jn your examination of the body did you note any evidence of
girangulation or asphyxia?
B jhels B et
Weither the recorder nor +thé members of +the board desired further to

examine this wiltness.

wi th,

The wi-

e i

gatlon 1r10h he thougnt snould be a maLter of" record;ln‘ )
which had not been fully brought cut by the previous

sorrestalty body?
3, whave vwass

. iy 618
nogek wid Bhie sami e hig bathrobe was tled tHghtly arocund his

you remove that sash?

il e aido! e

3quéstlon1ng.

aess saild thet ne had motidng further to s tats.
e ss was duly varned and withdrew.

o iy




4 viti.ss was called, entered, was duly sworn, end was informed of the
subjeny natber of the inveatigatiosn. £t

xemi. 0 by the recorder:

1. . Stte vour aame, raink sud present station. Lo
Lieutenaut Lommander, iedical Corps, Y. 3.

A
T, ASSLStant Fadiclegis®, €. S. iHaval Heospitel, Naticnal Waval
cediecal Center, Bethesda, laryland.
2. (. 7t were your specific dutles on the night of May ﬁwenty—flrst?
A. Jadlcal Officer-of-the~bay, U. §. Maval Hospital, Bethesda, :

lmryland.

3+ Qo i1l you please ¢ell the board the events of the night of May
twenty~first in relation to the death of lfister Forrestal?

A, %t approximetely zero cae fifty-five T was awakened and celled to ths
third deck, %o room thres eighty-four and there outside of the north
wvindow I saw a body, apparently dead, By tha® Hime the intern
actlng as assistant Officer-of-the~Day had arrived at’the scene and

ad pronounced the body dead as of zero one £ifty-fiva. B
CWSuematlc search ol a1l floors on the tower was. 1nst1gated and the
informa tion was received that the room of Hister Jamés Forrestel was

sty and thet he couldn't be found on the sixteenth deck. Im-
siiately following this, ﬁdmiral Commanding Qfficer oif the
oo oital was notified of the death anc the tentative identification
v the body as that of iister iorrestal., The Commanding Offiocer
cined to malke the hotificetion to higher euthorities of the Navy
cw ortmeat and thersrore ne notification was made by the officer-of-
vay'ts office. .. juard congisting of the eivilien guard, the

I Jasher-at-arws une leborstory corpsmen was placed in the
iadty or room thraee sighty-four o see Lthat the body snd general
cn ke waE caht mlhmngsd - neledhbd.  AdmarEad end: Admiral

came to the hospital vithin e matiter of fifteen or twenty
pmites and took oveor Muriher arrangemsants. At approximately three
thirty-five this officser was asked to contact Dootor , the
coatgomery County Coroner. fThe coroner arrived st approximately
who Pour fifteen. Vhile walking to +the coroner he gawve his verbal
cuiriaission over the phone do move the body if we so desired before
Lhig arrivwal at the hospiiala :

Foige

Neithel tne recorder nor the menbeors of the board desired further o
exeniine CLuls wiltness.

The bourd 1lnformed the witness thet he was privileged %o make any further

statenv U covering anything relatiang Lo the subject matter of the investi-
gation .leh he thought should be a metber of record in connection therewith
whnich nud no%t been Iully brought out by the previous questioning.

The wivaccs wade the following sitatement;

It mighs e noted that the lmmnediate dlscovery of the body'was;W1tnin a,

matter ol seconds by two lesboratory corpsmen inoluding: _.NhOS-
pitalina.. second, who determined that the body was dead,tw! T i
stretcher, notified the (lief ilaster-st-armsg, the asslsﬁant Offi'der~of-$he-.
Day and srficer-of-the-Day in rapid sequence.

A

3




recorder ool the -aembers of the beoard desired further to

vl tness .

£
tliis

SO, et

e C

. _ness gaid that ke had nothing further to gtate.

T™The

The 1. w@as was duly wvoarned aad withdrow.

was ocallsed, eatered, was duly sworn, and was informed of the

subjuect natier of the inveztigatioil.

racorder;

i H® &

(4 present station.
Junior, hospitel apprentice, U. 3.
Bethesds, larylend.

e LAamea,

Four )
sl VY s

aval ..edicel Cemtor,

oW S waz L were pour specifioc duties on the night of iay
tventy-first? _
spacific dutics were tolake giye af flster Forrestal.

D]

- EE)
g TEE ok @l yen ob o T
& Bl @ Gt Q) FleRey EPRTtEE EL w8 Pl
Lo o om did #ow Teliews§
B nospital corysiiane.

Be w. -wuld you tell the boord what hieppened from the time you took aver
ce watelh 2t elevon forty-five until the time that you discovered
Lizter Porrestal was missing?

s 5 i | ROk wateh at ¢laven forty-£ive whom I re-
d told s ouer rorrestal was 2€ill up in his room and
St i1 had bee . wiilil.y around; that he had been reading. Since
L didutt know jidster prorrestal persenally, (I had besn on the
ht before, and wie:n he woike up the next morning I dida't get to
1x to him very much, i didnty know him personally), he intro-
duced me to him and he wws very friendly and ssid "Hello™ to me.

G. . ow many times did you speale to Mister FPorrestal between +the time

vou tool over the vateh and the time he was missing?
A soovoxime tely three or four bimes. : '

Te 3. wid you noflce anyihing unusuel about Mister Forrestal's behavior

curiog that time?
M 50 Ekgy, Tl o R i
he say anything to you that
sy way disturbed?
Ao o8y Sy de ddidiml i

8. Q.

Tiwl . L0 wEmd g blue d 2t gee [izber lrorrestal?
Bian e VRS [ECIEH HETERR SAL

i ¢1's was he then? ;
A.  oowag in his baed,. opparently sleeping.

1l.0. wre were you atf That timns?
Ae - vas in the room when I saw him.

loave the rovom otk that time?
i Ldads

b T S, | ¢ 171
=

Sy i R,

_hf_

would lead you to believe he was in




13. . iinere did you gFo? . .
4. I went out te the nursels desic o write in the chart, iister

sorreastalls chart.

. ]
L. ¢o At what time did you begome avare of the fact that Mister Forrestal

5
A
f

was missing?
A. ..t approximately one-Tifty ae.ma.
Ty Juu you previously spoken te the dector regarding Mister Porrestal?
L. Yes, sir, I had.

16, §. At what time was that?
i. “hat was just before one forty-five before T went. bacL lnto his room

o check to see what he was doing, to see 1f he wa

rasting.
y e .. shd e gewn ieft the room and went out to the nurse!s desk?
. e wRil6€ Sw i elAFE,  JeEs ST,
13. . Cat did wou do when you discovered Hister Porrestal was missing?
. .aen I went back into the room after I had finished writlag in the
ciart, o went over to my cheir where he had been sitting while I

.as in iis room before and since id is dark in his room, very dark,
iy eyes had to become accustomed to the light before I could ses
7 anything. There is a chalr sitting directly in front of the night
; iight and it is very lard to see anything at all .when you first
; walle into the room s0 I wenl over and started to sit down in the
: shair; just got down in the chair; by +that time I could see snough
‘o e that e wasn'+t in his Led. The first thought that ocame to my
mind was meybe he had potten up and gone into the head and at the
agme moment the corpsman on duty, s cams +to the ddor and told me
i hed 'a phone call out at the desk. T told him Mister Forrestal
vias gone. I went out to the desk and answered the phone call, It

vias » the night [laster~at~arms of ihe Heuropsyshietric
garvico. -asked wme if }ister Forrestal was alright. I said
aidn' ¢ lomow, thed he wasn’t in his bed and he +told me to make

-

a thorouph check and rind cut for sure where he was. So I went
Lack into the room end the corpsmen gave me a Plashlight and I went
lato the head, looked in the cleoset, any possible place in +the room,
and on ny way bacl out in the limll back to the phons I looked into

the galley and I didan'f see him in there, either. So I went back
to the phone and told r that he was not there.‘

Fxamized by the board;

19, .. oust prior to discovering that 1fister Forrestal wes missing did you
cear euy ubusual noises coming from the vicinity of the diet

. i e e

L Be we; sy 1 Reswd EetiGie.

20. . wers you close enough ‘o the diet kitchen to. hear 1f there had been

any unusual noises?
A, Yes, sir, I definitely would hava.

JUR

W

2. 7. ‘ha% 18 your répgular assipmment im the hospital?

». i was on night duty on ward 6-D, a neuropsychiatric: ward.

w5

22, . dHow lomg have you been thera?
A« approximately twoe months, a little over twe months, sir.

- 23, (. Mow long have you been assigned to the neuropsyohlatrlc 5ervioce?
4 A. A little over two months, sir. :

Ll
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ow meny times did you say you stood watch on Mister  Forrestal?
Part of Pridey night and L Htoolk the repgular watch omw Saturday
night.

cid ister Forrestal de wvery nuch wandering about his room or
gorridor Seturday i hit?

e vas vallking around his room end he did follow me out %o the diet
14 tchen when he asked me for some orange juice and then once af fer
shet he was out of his room to drink a cup of coffes.

Lid he go in the diet kitchen for the coffes?
ves, sir, he did. )

wyere you with hiwm then?
20, sir, I was nod,

e served the coifee himsell? p
_o, sir, the corpsaen on duty, , was bringing coffes up in a
coffee pot et thatl time. I was out writing my chart and he went pas
iy desk wherw [ was sittin" and entering in +the charnit.. He went out
wowards the galley with this pot of coffee and T hedrdihim mention
isster Forrestal's naze aad say something to him andi aslc him if he
viould like a cup of voifee. Iister Forrestal said: WYes“ and then

7 heard a noise wiich would signify he was pglving Him a .oup of
voffee end right after that I mot up and went out to the diet
itehen. I8 was coming out vAth this coffee in his hand., He handed
e the cup of coifee and said he was all finished with it. He said
1 could put it in the galley.

about what ftime was that?
hat is one time I dont't remember,

How was he dressed?
e was in his pajamas, Sir.

Lid hs hawve a batbthrobs on or notb?
0 B

pid you glve ifister porrestal any medloatlon at all that night?
o, BT, Boaddnd .

2id he talk $o you very much that night?
f=}
.0, he didn't.

~idart e ask you awcuat yourself and where you come from and so on?
2, sir, he didu't say mach oxcspt when I first came in and was

Litroduced to rim. et was wher he said "Hello™ to me. When I

uakad him 3if he wented his sleeping tablets he told me no, he
“hought he could sleep without them. '

1ms your station inside ilister Porrestal's room or was it outsids

the door? A
1 don't exgetly understand what you mear by that, si

wgre you dlrected te sit inm his room while you had thewwatoh;most
ol the timé or could you sit at the nursers desk?

L was supposed to be in- the room except when I went out to make
ontries in his chart «r get something for Mister'Fonfestal.

yare the lights on in iiisder Forrestal’s room when you “took over

the wateh ~ the overhead lights?
40, sir, not the overhead lights; just the nlght llght...
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pid you notice a broke. ashlray any time durlpg your tour of duty
i THster lorrestalts room? :
g gloy Ear, 1L didate.

9. - j.en you were ot Yhe nurse's deslk iz 1t pogsitle for m person fo go

iuto Lthe diet litchen without your observing him?

. couldn't have seen him.

e oLid LHdster Toirrsshal oppear chiesrful or dspressed in the timse that
su observed hin? ’

e L @speered neither, sir.

Li 1l =od Lieter dorréstal du dhy rending?
Ae wobt whiles I was on watch, sir.

S T4er you discovered :izter Forrestal was gone did you go into the

salley?
a. cpout fif'teen or twenty minutes afterwaerds, yes, sir,

PB4

Juula you describe the condition of the window in +the area at ths
w8 tue t you went im there, in partioular whether the scrssn was

Locked or unlocked?
LA, e soreen was unlocked et that time, sir.

L. . ere there any attachments to the radiator?
L. 1 saw noune if there wera.

Lif ., | L0 wou notice auy mari:s on the window sill?
M, av tnat tike I was in sucl o stete that. I didn't notice any
Larks on the window sill.

L6. ¢, vou did state earlier that you had looked into -the galley but no ons
was there? i ; ,
R T i

L?. .ovou had no reason o examine the galley further?
SRR SR ST o i ok I L 08

Lie s LLG you see [iister curraestal's body at any time later?

A, Yaes, sir, I did, in the morguse.
Lo, . .id you recognize the body as that of Ifister Forrestal?
i, ozl S |

Heither (.. recorder nor the ..ombers of +the board desired further +to examine

this wiiness.

The bomrd informed the witness that he was privileged to make any further

statens:..t covering anything relating to the subject matter of the investi-
gationu wiveh he $howght whould be & patter of redord ig epuméotion therewith%
which had not been fully brought out by the previous. quesbioning.

The witness said that he had nothing further to s tate.
The witiess was duly warned and withdrew,

A vitness was called, entered, was duly sworn and was informéd of +he
subject -wtter of the investigation. © T

e




Fxeuiiaod by the recorder:

1.

S4ate your name. rate and present station.
5 hospital apprentice, U. S. Haval
i4nl, mational Luval Ledical Center, Bethesda, liaryland.

Leh ere wour rapeizr dutiss et the Faval Hospitalf
diding ecare ol neuronsyeldatric patients.

cow lomg have you besn taking care of neuropsychlatrlc‘gatlents?
Tif teen months, Sire ‘

2l v

L= g i
"ot were your specific duties onr the night of lsy twenty-first?
Y had the watch on Liister lorrestal from four until twelve o'clock

pidnights

turing the time that you had the watoh on Mister Forrestal did you
notice anydling unususl about his behavior?
Yes, sSir.

A1l you tell the board what thds unusual behavior was during your
wa toh? Ee

“@ll, sir, ot tweaty-oite ten he started walking the room and it
didat t seem odd ot tenty-one ten but when he was still welking
g floor st twenty-ito hundred that was the first +ime he had
ever walked tle Tloor that loay and he was walking the floor for

& period of two hours and Fifty minutes before I went off wasch

o4 twenty-four hundred. And anothar thing was he went into the
Joctors' room adjeining his room end he raised the blinds, I would
say that was - don't know exact time - around twenty hundred and he
raised the blinds ang ralsed the window and at the time I was at
she desk. We had orders we could stay at the d esk Until twenty-
e hundrsd so lon; oo we checksd on him; so I went back to the
~aetorst reoom and thoe putient wes standiag at the window. IHe had
cukged e bottow sert oL 1t wpy as fPar as it would go. When I
walied in the ruwe he junped sside. e had the blind %o +the top
‘o the winwow v ng fur as 44 would go., I walked in the room and
;2 jumoed aside, e said ¥ ; T Taised that windew. IF {4

ots you in any treuble close it" so he went back through the head
f¢a olosed the deor so I let tho bliad dovm and W&lked out of the
rooms Just as I got %o the door I heard the door 0 +the head open
apein. He stuck his head out so I went back and clgged: “the head
door and locked it aul I woint back to the desk. T ‘didn't make any
wote o1 it baecuse he has opeuned vindows geveral “times in his own
raom and the dogtors' room. .uly differeace was I am usually there

it

Lt hinm when hs daes « Uther thau fthet there was nothing odd
TaEhe e &EAS L O HAdEE el

liow long had you stocd watch on NMister Forrestal previous to this

particular night?
well, sir, T ook over the watoh the third day ha was up thare.

Do you know what date that was?
I would say it was the fifth of April.

hatgdata?

, noon, then
eelks, then
‘ 'jlittle

And you had stood watohes continuously on him smnce_
Yes, sir, ¥ had eight in the morning to four in
I went from there to twelve to eight, stood tha .
went on four to twelve. I have been on four 1o itwe.
over three weeks. :

_&7_




- Exeminod by the board:

" i @,

these oocurrences that you have just related in regardlto Migter

lorrestalrs behavior on that night, did you oonsider: them gufficlent-
ly unusual to report them to the dootor? i
A. 0, sir, I reported his walking the room to Doctor and T  put 1+t

in the' chart and then Dootor ~ asked me how ocome the.door was
locked back there and I told him I thought I better look 1%, being ag

he raised the blind.

1l. Q. Did you attach any particular significance to this typa of behavior?
A. Yo, 8ir, I didn't at that time.

12, Q. Had you seen him in the past do things similare?
A, well, sir, he geveral times did walk the room. He hated light and
walked over 1o the window shades and if they were open a 1little too

far he would pull it olosed,

13, . bid Mister Forrestal seem Ffriendly on that night?
A. YaS, 8ir, he geemed wvery friendly. I introducsd .. v to him as T
lef4 the watch and he sheok hands with end said he was glad

to meet him.

s . Did he meet him the night before?
A, Ho, sir, he was sleeping when
awakened by the time went off,

came on wetoh and hadntt

15. Q. Other than the oconversation you have glven with Mister Forrestal
did he say anything else to you oxn that night? ¥
A. Yo, gir, he asked me if I thought it was stuffy in the rocom and he
asked that several times since I have been on watcoh; he -liked fresh
air. When I was on night watoh, twelve to eight in the morning he
always got a blanket out for us to wrap around us because he had
the windows wide open.

Leithsr the recorder nor the members of the board d551red further to examine
this w1tness. 5

The board informed the witness that he was privileged to make ény fur ther
statement covering enything relating to the subjeot matter of the investi-
gation which he thought should be 8 matter of reocord in commeoticn there-
with, wiiich had not been fully brought out by the previous guestioning.

The witness made the following statement;

He started reading a book at sbout twenty hundred end whenever the corpsman
would come in the room he would turn the bed lamp off and sit. down in the
ohair and so far as the writing I don't know. It appeared that he was but
I ocouldn't say for sure. ‘ 5

Na1ther the regorder nor the members of the board deszred further to examine
this witness. .

The witness said that he had nothing further to gtate.,

The witnegs was duly warned and withdrew,.

Ll




A witness was called, entered, was dulysworn, and wes informed of the w
subject matter of the investigation.

’ Exemined by the recorder;

| 1; Q. State your name, rank and present station of duty.
AR Lieutenant, Nurse Corps, U. S. Navy, presently

steticned U. S. Waval Hospital, Bethesda, Maryland.

L2, Q- What are your regular duties at the Naval Hospital?:
J A. At the present time I am on night duty from ten until seven
covaring from tower eight to tower seventeen, inclusive, super-

viging all wards.

3. Q. What were your duties the night of May twentyhfirst?
A. T was on pight duty from ten until seven, covering ‘towers twelve to

gseventeen, inclusive.

I 4 Q- ¥ilk yow please fall Lhe board the events relsting Yo the death of

f iister Forrestal on the night of May twenty-first?

P 4. Yes. I had started rounds, gotien my reports on fourteen, was

through there about twenty after ten; made rounds on fourteen,

went to thirteen then fifteen and I reached gixteen shortly after

sleven. At that time I went in +to sSee Mister Feorrestal. He

wasn't in his room. He was out in the galley having orange juice

with the ocorpsman, =~ I spoke to him then and he was very ocalm

and self-agsured and quite pleasant. He returned to his room.

then, I think about eleven thirty, I went down o tower ten +to relievs

the marse on duty thers. I+t is a dependents' floor and mllitery

rfemale floor. After relieving her T went to supper, returned to

sower sixteen I would say approximetely ons otclock.. I ohecked on

: sister Forrestal then. My oorpsman had just found him’in. the galley

i and the lights had been out when the corpsman, y - ent'in. ‘Mister

| Forrestal came toward him. He had some coffee with .flor the night,.

’ Mister Forrestal asked about having some coffes and was quite

! friendly with the corpsman. Mister Forrestal lef+t the galley and

t returned immediately te his room. the corpsman on

H ‘ister Forrestal at that time was charting e+t the nursers desk. T

i zold . that I wanted %o be informed if Migter Forrestal

; didn't sleep as I was aware of the fact thet he had pretended to tak

i his sodium amytal earlier in the evening but it was found he hadn't,jthat

he had been quite active. I understood that _ Before being

relieved of his watch at midnight had digscussed Mister Forrestal

with Doctor who was on duty. Mister Forrestal,.after drinking

his coffee, went to bed. I made short rounds and came baok and

checked on Mister Forrestal again, went into the room. This was at

one thirty and he was in bed at that time and ¥ essumed him %o be

i sleeping. I asked . if he thought he was asleep and

i thought so. Within seconds after I lef+t the room ocame out
and told me as scon as I walked cut of the room Mistar“Forrestal

asked who that was who had entered the room. G alels '8 Pt

darkness with the exceptlon of the. very Small

- next -hhlng I knew about it it was about a quar't;e‘
I was in the offioe at that +time on sixtee
log, when she ocame up and told me a body had fallen. She ‘ha'd hesrd

~Lo-




the sound of the body falling and I ran for Mister. Forrest&lrs
room, flipped the light on and he wasn*t there nor he wasntﬁ in

the bathroom. , the floor corpsman had run over 'to; the galley
and flipped the light on there and as you enbersd in tha_gallay
you could see the window open and the soreen was ajar- T went in
and awakened Dootor . at that time and told him Mister Ferrestal
was not in his room and the galley window was open.

@5. 9. Ggrlier in the evening when you sent the corpsman, » in %o |
? inform Doctor that Mister Forrestal had not taken his sleeping
! medicine what, particularly happened as a result of this?‘

A Taster told the corpsman if Mister Forrestal wantad %o take his

sodium amytal he oould but not to foroce it.

6. Q. How long have you been on this mriiocular night detaile

. A. A% that time I had beeun on approximately a week. :

%7. Q. Was it usual for Mister Forrestal sometimes not to take his regular
sedation at night?

A. Not usual, but there were nights when he hadn't takenit; he hadn't

taken it the night before and slept well; refused it the night before

and slept well.

8. . #hen he refused to take it was it a refusal to. take medicine or just
& dssire not to take it because he thought he probably could sleep?
A. l:@ thought that he would be able to slesp without it although the
: corpsman, when had given it to him earlier he thought he had
| taken it and because of his paoing up and down he thought he hadn't
! taken it and questioned him and ha told him he hadn't taken them.

e Qe Had you lmown of that to take place at any previous time, that is,
that he pretended to have taken his capsule and didn'+?
A, Not since I have been on night duty but it seems to me while I was
on day duty there that that had happened, cannot remember the
partloular day.

A. Yes, 1 sesem to remember 1% having happened before; he didm't like to tpke

JlO. Q. Cn one occasion?
i
# sedation but usually Yook it.

11. @. On that particular night in gquestion did you notice tbat he appeared
tnusual in any way or more agitated, more dlsturbed, more distraught
than usual?

i &. AT the time I saw him in the galley close to eleven thirty he
appsared his usual self; wvery cheerful, pleasant but no different than
at any time I had ever seen him. _ i

“12. . So far as you kmow was it usual for Mister Forrestal to go intc the
dic¢t kitchen on the floor?
A, Y wouldan's say I thought it wes usual. I knew he was having 4 I
croased activity during the day but not at night.

Weither the recorder nor the members of the board desired further o examine
this witness. ;

| g




The boord informed the witness that she was privileged to‘méke any further
statement coveriny auytiing relating to the subjeot metter of the investi-
gation wiich she thought should be a matter of record in connsectiuvn there-
with which had 1ot been fully brought out by the previous questioning.

The witness made the following statement:

I tiink i should say my reason for being so particularly interested in
Mister rorresteal that nipght was I didn't like the faot he hgd been so

active earliier in the evening and he hadn't taken his sodium amytal.

I undersiood from the chart when I came on that he had moreior less increase

motor - :tivity. @ had been quite active and I just thought I, perhaps,
shoule oy a little more attention to him sinece I knew thsre was a neow
corpsi.. . on and I would prefer him remaining in bed than having him move
aroun. :» freely as he was doing. '
e e recorder nor the .enbers ol the board desired furthsr to examine
WhhE . s,
T -u g said bthat sbe had agothineg further to state.

= 55 was duly weried a..d withdrevs

A vaitueus was called, entered, was duly swornm, and was informed of the
subject .atter of the investigsation.

Exaunines by the recorder:

l. . 3tate your aname, rste and present station.
B ; hospital apprentice, G. S. Havy, Bethsesda Waval Ilospital.

B. B Mgl apd moum reswlin Agtias'y

4. .izht now I am on ni jht duty.. BLvery hour I make my rounds on my

crlar patients on towser sixtesn.

3 . -1 the night of limy twenty-first what were your duties?
A. .5 usual I neode rounds every hour and at twelve o'clook I was re-

o

lieved to zo to chow.
[~}

L. 3. ere you the regular uight duty COrpsman on towsr 51xteen?
lima g S

5. . i1l you tell the board tho events lsading up to the' tlme of Ifister

vorrestalle death on the night of Mey tweanty-firste .

L. 55 muach as I had seen him. 7T believe it was around.nlne thlrty the
ragular spscial watch came out and ordered a half-glass of orange
Juice which I get. Ile went back in his room and drank'it gnd. I. hever
sees him; thought I hesrd him stlrrlng, tallcing to the..peclal wa tch,
1 went to chow and cane back up. tolock and get
gume fresh coffea. 1 went dovm and coms baoh up and jus% as I went

i the galley, I thought the door was all the way ope:

waJn't I found out hen I bumped into the door wmth th

(G2

witich he took and went in lis room. Then I heard. the s
bring the empty cup back out and sit it in the galley ndzthat's the
last thing I knew. I never sssen the man no more.; b

ba*“ real cheery 11 ¢ and T asLed him if he wanted & o

~51-




G. 7. ad you had any sartlcular dealings with ifister Forrestal pre-
viously?

. _los Sir, ouly whan he first cone and during the day I was on day
vori then and deteiled certain rooms to clean. That room was my
ruvom to clean but we never toucihed 1t. The vacuum clegpner and all
come up from downstairs, never went in thers. Only time I séen him
vas when we went in the head to swab and that stopped’and T nsver did
¢z him afver that. Thatts the only other dealings T had with the

e

7. 4. wen did you first become aware of the fact that Mister Forrestal

AT missilg?
A. 7 =0t a telephone call from the Information Dask o hold a bed—cheok

vich I did. I wes getting ready fto go badk %o oheck his .room, . had
ciecked other peatienits and the phonse rang apgain and‘thsyfwanted‘his
s soclal watoeh to come to the phone so I went there and”told him he had
v ahione call. I goh the call approximately one forty-~eilght; never
Jooiked 8t the cloek. Yhen he got the call he come bo “the phone, went

Lauk and he sald ke wasu't in there. He saild sometimes he used o, whew

vt lonely, there wore two beds in the opposite room, in -the doctors!
roou, sometimes hae weuld go over and lay down with him. So I gave the
Loy my regular flashlight I always carry a nd said go into the head ang
sze if he is there; he come back and said he wasn'4. By thet time the |
m.rse comd and burned the light on and T went out and turnsd +the

galley light on and I seen the screen was loose., Thatts all I know.

8. Q. D.d you see iister forrestal on any other occasion on ths night in
question - on any other cceasion than running inte him in the diet
Tenon? :

A. unly nine-thirty vhen he asked for that glass of orange juice,

Q¢ Q. #ow did he seem at that time?

A. He seemed very cheerful to me like he did at one o'olock. At one
o'zlock he pauted me on the back, don't remembsr just what he said,
sounded real chesrful 4o me. I usked him if he w1shed‘a oup -of .
coisree and he said ¥Yes he would liks %o, s asked me 1f I was going
to have one 2nd I said "Yes™ and he poured one out for me, picked his
cu up and want back in the room.

Biransae., L7 Ghe wemprd:
1043y 'x  lister Forrestal alone in the galley at the time you brought the
Gl e B2
B TR GRS ey
11.4- vias the gpecial watch at that timef
4. ot owas at oue otclock. He was just logging something in his

neard me talking tc Lfister Forrestal and he came right out

dMeither the recorder ner the members of the board desired further to examine
#ie wEsErsEE .

The boar. imlormed the witness that he was 9r1v1leged te makeiany further
statemeint covering anything relating to the subject matter: ofithe investiga-
tion widcl: he thought should be a matter of record in commsction therewd th,
which hod ot been fully brought out by the previous questioning.

The witioss said thet he had nothing further to state.
The witnuss was duly warned aud withdrew,

L
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A witness was called, entered, was duly sworn and was informdd of the

subject matter of the invesiigation.

tlhie racorder:

: cud presect station.

g <0 1. NI 3"“\.l1‘ i
B ansat junior grade, U. 3. Hawval Reserve, U. S,
nl worpital, Bethesdo, rarylaad,
Lz, ., w4 are your regulor duties at the Havdl Hospital?
How e G u"-ht Guty {rom eight t¢ ftwelve just about two nights & weelk,

Smrsdey and Friday. For some time I was scheduled for the month but

e civilian nurse on ocug txenty-elght ot sick and I am over there
iiss ., the relief nurse for the civilian nurse,'relleves on
twenty-eight on Pursdey and kriday and I take the lower fowers

C*u il &0 twelire.

B ~
[N

5. ... 0% were your particular duties oam ths night of May twenty-Tirst?

f A. voually before guarter of twe I go down to tower eipght before I write
tlhe captain's log and I had left tower twelve and went down to fower ei
aud I asked the corpsmen how §verything was and he saidi he Just gave a

h%

[155]

wun oa pill. I happened to look up at the claek. 14 was just sbout
oue Feurty-four. 1 sut there in a cheair for a minute ‘and then I heard

4 i5 noise. It was a deuble thud and I said what was that., I said
U sounded like somsvody ['ell out of bed you betder cheolk the wing in
1ot and he went bo check the beds and sald 1t was alright so I said
4111 check the head" end sont him 4o towsr seven to $ee if it was
goretling down there. Jhatls whon I walked in the bathioom on towsr
eishtt. I lookad out the window. I just remember thinking in my mind,
Moy, my Ged, I hope he ismti mine" and I ran up to tower twelve and
told the corpsman fo check on folonel room 50 he walked into
hi- roowm and I walked into room twelwe thirty opposite his room and
looiced out the windew from there and could see & body distinetly. It
i 3 fhen 1 really'realized it was a body and T thought~6f i s ter

u WL

f iworestal. So I owent up o tower sixteen and ftold Miss there was

G & 1 s bo‘y outside thr galley window and he wasn'+t mine. We both

: v 7 oiwteo his roon: ain o wasn't there and we notlced the broken glass
o.. e bed aud looked down and notiged the razor blade and told him he

i vy missing and she sald it was one fority-eight, Then I walked over

: tuoards the salley and uaoticed the soresn wes unlookeds That's about
g Lds

I xamines by the board;

| .yt - fad h) L]
lye 3. Then you found out the body was not that of one of your patients what
ma de you think of Hister Forresta l?
]

$
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ograohi that { suall pass over to you. Ghese are photographs
. o The exfdernal injurioes, takea just before the time of autopsy,
i "o took twe photos, ome of the skull and one of the abdomen., I
| hwve copies of these and elso have the negatives which; if the

Lorrd wishes, [ could furm over.

Bxemined by the recorder;

25 SO vars there pictures daken of the autopsy of the

nte Janes V. Porrestal?
~re were pictures tuleun ol
the autopsy.

=

the external injuries immediately pre-~

show you two piectures, can you identlfy them?

e s CEgpundal; T
ol the pictures the t werse taken of which I have

@ Yos, “thefe re coples
i jucw spoken.

subnitved *to the board by the recorder and offersd

;
tthe two Twotoprachs wers .
objection they were so received and are

jes evice.co. There being no
lappended .arked Txhibits S& and 5B.

Txamined b the board;

o

did the brain show any pathologlocal findings begide those of

jT. Qe S e 1

! titaiag,? :

I 2, w.o.re were no other pathological findings execept those due te the

; et B ¢ WAL 172

i

8. . o nere auy evidence of' strangulation or asphyxis by strangulation?

f. e, here was ebsclutely no evidence external or internal of any

stromuladtion or asphyxia.

wove therse any slssihws across the wrists?
. Thwere was & lacsretion oi' the wvoler surface of the rloht:wrlst which
waz @ part of the gzeneral lacerations due to the recentfall. fThis

RUD

} WL B ey
i

‘ Towawar, there was no evideuce ol any iaoerwmuwions that would |
in cay way appear to have been self-inflictbed either recenﬁ or remote,

10eQ. Was there any fracture of the cervical vertebrae as: Shown“by X-Ray of

the body?
L Ihe %-Rey c¢idn'® reveal any fractures of the oervlca

is the X-Ray taken prior to sutopsy dldn't raevesl any. f‘actures of the
GGI"LClC vertebrae. ;

yeither the recorder nor the wwmbers of the board desired urther to examing

Ghds vile.esS.

2ny further
the investi-~
‘ol therewl th,

The board informed the wituess that he was privileged to make
t eovering anything relating to the subjeot matier g
“eh he thought should be a matter of record in tonng
not been fully brousht out by the previous quesHo

sHatene::
gation ...
waad Bl baeet

e wd b g ade . the follendeg S Gemand:

¥ deaEl e ppeari g gul d b save no further statements tc make.

5

M o e
F2




Neithcr thie recorder mor the members of the bouard desired further to examins

thls s L-LGSS¢

T a vifl.iuss said that he hod =zething further to siste.

5

The wii..zss was duly warned and vdthdrew,.

The bourd then, at L:03 pem., adjourned until 1:15 p.m., tomorrow, May 26,

15L9.

POURTH DAY

NA TLONAL HAVAL MEDTCAL CENTER
BETRSDA, HARYLAWD.

THURSDAY, MAY 26, 19L9.

T e B ifd 1B .
- . vedionl Jorps, U. 8. Mavy (Rets) Active,
e
PR L T (Mo P RS PR 1 V2
b J8dical Corps, U. 5. lovy,
Copaniuy = i L.edical gorps, U. S. Wavy, and
Lisute:r 2t Commaander liedical Lorps, Us. S. Wavy, members;
and ' i
ILisutenant i.edical Servicegorps, U. 8. Navy, recorder.
s, Civilian, reporter.

ihe rev. .t of provesdings or ik third day of the investigation was read

and aps osved,
do vdticiues not otherwise couunected with the investigation were present.

A witneoy was, at lds own request, recalled to introducs some additional
evidence wviich nhe ad at hand aud wes warned that +the oath previosusly taksn
by him wes still binding.

Exemined Yy the recorder;:

l. Q. Ttove your nmame, rank and pnresent station. ‘
gl Captain, ijedical forps, U. 8. ¥avy, U. 8., Hawal
citel, datiomal wavwal ledical Center, Bethesds, Meryland Chlel
oL fue Heuropsychiatrie 5ervlce.

Examined by the board:

24 Qe Ves by did you reguest to reappear before: the bua“d to's bmit
gc:.7 Turther statement and letters into +the testlmony? i
dog 0 B giew, dEmsEn gl BE | Backar wa
wEy ;iGiTlS" in dster rorrestal's case I thought the bodrd should know
of + ledtter wich I hnve JU“L recoived from him, dated May 25, 1OL9,

a.:6 Tnaded vhe ameriecna Poyelidatric Association in Annu

fa .
ioutresal, Canada. It is signed by Doctor
President of the jmerican Psychiatrio: Assoclatlon,‘wm«

~GBe




Ze (. 1w oyow recoguize tlie signature?

Ae o toe I uow Doctor ; signeture gquite well and this is i+t
i . . E £y
‘ ithout a quesiicn oi a cdoubt.

L, q. 311 you proceed to read the letter to the board?
A. The body of the letter wihilch is addressed fo me is as follows;

Yeay Doetor L was wry sorry to learn of Mister TForrestal's :
death. As wou know, I have been familiar with the total situation from
the begimning and have kept in close contact .with what was being done.
T fully apnroved of the treatment outlined for him. .As.a physician, I
moyw it reguires greater medical courage to take 1easonabléqrisks in
the course of recovery thenr to retain restrictions which retard the i
ing-well process. if there is anything I can do fo helo the public

| sl ki
1 £ =
i or oklerpartlies uenceried to understand the unprediotable nature of

i a werson with an extreme, impulsive drive to self-destruction, pleasse
lei me know." 1 have also a number of othser letters if you arse

sarested in any of thew. They have been streaming in.

pogtor _ lotter =me presented to the board by the rscorder and
olfere. - evidence. Thers Dboing no objection it was so roeceived and a

rlred Rxhibit 6. ‘

eMel B @ Bupy 15 dppeadded g

kS

vou hove some ofiwr letvers you think would be worthwhile to
4 w0 the board we woula e glad 4o hear them.
1e board is iuterested, here is a letter from Doctor
", Professor ot Psychiatry, Unilversitfy of Michigen and odnsulting

wsyciriatrist to Selective Service during the reocent war. I% i1s addrsssej

‘JJU

Al 1T

to ¢ and sizmed by Docstor whosc gignature I lnmow quite well;
i tten on notel statiouary fron ontreal, Canada, under dats of iay 25,
10l "Laar yoctor I heve reand the newspaper mccounts of the

death of [HAuter errestal auc I awm writing to express my sympathy
Ze femily, physicians nad to the United States Navy for the loss of
such: & vigorous former lesder and Secretary. I am alsc concerned that
the widespread publiecity wight 1n some wey reflect upon the sxcellencs
of _awvy psycilatry unless there ig full understanding by everyons of the
necessary risks and hazards which must be faced courageously in the
maaement of such a wsdicnl problemn., liodern psychiatrie treatment
requires that Sertein planced risks must be undertaken on occasion in
order :o facilitate recovery aud rehabilitation. Yo pregautions can
guaraatee avoidance of trajedy in a patient with powerful, impulsive
sell-destructive tendencies. To utilize constant surveillance pre-
clu261 the return of self-confidence in the petient and may arouse

iry? tble uncooperativeness ia an individual of determined and forceful
per-vaality and thus wey defeat the whole plan of therapy. It is my
sincars hope that this 1ut+cr Nﬂj be of some slight comfort 4o you and
o0 L% v Y emglwisrae soiie oF Ehe alfflcult declslous which arise in
cuerapy and manﬂgemvnw of such casgss.

=]

atter was presented to the bosrd by the recorder and
fere bLeiny; uo objection it was so received and s
lrad mKnlblt Te

avidsne
GEE=

Q.
g, B sp@aced fifm

e un i

;uﬁ these twe

| I vould like to say that there arsnumerous other letterg:
te wall and

1 resent first hecsuse Leoctor E knew the case qu

=



ety BbdpmEe Lagtion ety wall cums wp the contonts of ald
‘ +he others. There are serhaps twenty from varilous psychiatrists 1
‘acluding oae irom boctor » Superintendent of St.
slizebeth!s ioeg:idal, aad from numerous other people but ihis, the
vne of Doctor . about sarmarizes what the rest of fthem havse !
|
|
I
|

'
L3
ik

L]

) SAY. . i

Bxaninoe by the beard:
e i _
[(Ee Yo o 2GTET, apea

B R T e

raturia to Lethesda did you view the remains of %

- I g o) WBECRIY T ; in rvewvimuing the previous testimony we rscall that yon
: weseribed a weelly cycliocal patbern as sart of his general trent

oward recovery. Jua you give us any explanation for-that pattern?
meorly as L osoule twll the ianoreasing depression in iister
correstalts osse Sowards vhe eud of the weel was rather directly re-
“ofed to hic fear of further atiteclis by certaln commentetors who
sondonst on Suaday eveadng. It so happensed tha+t these two individuaps
i been partloulusrly wvielous im thelr versonmal attacks and he was
traaely sensitive sueut further attacks from them. He was so
sge uroadeasts that he refused to listen Go them

s )

wasivive about th
I cimself but asked that I keep an accurate record of what they said.

g ne dwprowved w2 was (uite disturbed, and reasonably-so, over one
H Tunday night broadeasi whieh had alleged that he was wildly insane and
J ‘igvorted in his judgment while still a iember of ‘the Cabinet. Ths
i :onbent »f that serticular breadeast, whioch I recordsed, had no basis
{ atscever, in fact. ister jorrestal found that particular broad-
an egpaelally harda one to deal with, as he got batier, bLecauss

i Zeh it could accurately be dispossd

bt Be@sed b be Wy o |
u i by hime The oozt difficult single problem in the management of +the
case was the wiid attitude of vertein sections of the press. Mister
rorrestal was kept isolated from contmcts as a part of his treatment.
1b was -our belief that he useded at least two months of rathsr com-
slete freedom from conltact, even with his friends; Lo permit a good
vacovery. His friends and family were totally cooperdtive in this

ne they had been in all stages of treatment. Certain sections of +the

oruss, unfortunately, were not.

Leimiiey

§ 5 ol o= W PO -5 8

W@ oemoers ol the board desired further to examine

racoreer nor f

The board informed the vitiess that he was privileged to make any fur ther
' stateue i covaring eanything rolating to the subject matbter of the, investi-
ci he thought shoulce be matter of record in conneotion there- t
I

with, 37 . oh hed not been fully brought out by the previous questioning.

The =i o058 gadd Ewl we aEd sotiingdurtder Y State,
Ha e § REE Sgly eedlises Bed R GSEE.

| ! - gt ol
i The boaid then, at $1:55 Pem., adjourned until ;00 a.m., Tuesday, May 31
! SURY, Y 24,

1959,




i IR DAY

'; : HA TTOWAL HAVAL MEDICAL CRNTER
' BETIESHA, MARYLAND.

TISDAY, MAY 31, 19LO.

The be.id met et 9:00 8.5t

LS T:

ﬂ Captain . iledieal Jorps, U. 8, Havy CRet.) Active,
i Sonicr member;
!? el oy edbasl gerps, |T. 3. Y8y,
cagtain e T L. mediosl gorus, U. 8. wavy, ,
| Coruar s> ' . gdical Corps, U. S. Havy, and
i Lieutensat Corpinder Jjedical Corps, U, S. Hevy, members;
' and
Lieutenant :‘edieal Service {orps, U. S. Navy, recorder.
Lirsst, | dividlian, reporter.

The record of proceedings of the fourth day of the investigetion was read
and approved.

o witiesses not otherwise connected with the investigationfware present.

Captain .edical Coryps, U. S. ilavy, was recalled as a
vitness and was warned that the oath oreviously taken by him was still
binding.

Examined by the board;

b 1e e WAptEia 4 you hove gtated that frow mid-lmay the next thirty
§ vos o were considered o he tho .ws® dangerous in the convalescence
Jabut gprved tal ey lhd b ogo B WaiEdae suring &1 weritieel |
002 ?
3 a w i woowd resehed the point where 1t was nscessary {
e oatdent e devsloy sowme indegendencs from the therapist.
¢ hwmd beewn developing rather steadily from about the tenth or 1

leventh of iay. 1 ILix the do'e at that bucause it was just prior.

W Lre. rorrestalrs departure. This was a normal movement in theraps
wad one which eventualily Lud to be accomplished to make therapy
swvcessfule AS 1 imve ctated bofore, ildster TForrestal was very closge

.. recovery aad sctuslly I felt that this was the last hump that he

ad to get over. That 1s one reason for considering it such m

augerous veriod.  The patient has to undergo a developing 1ndependejce
i his therapist ana it is in taat period of resumption of his own |
independent personalit; that stiresses are sometimes too great for a f
evient. Had I not lel't town I would have speced my interviews outd
e aceopmulish egsentially the same thing. I ocalled the hospitwl

on Thursday night and talked o Dogtor ° . Oné reason for
“he call was tc be sure that jister Forres#l had reacted to my
wearturc as had been expected. I had intended calling on Sunday
vsnaning for a further check on his condition.




" |with, which hed not been fully brough% wut by the previous .quegtioning.

2O R . do you neen . that this period of risk was crested by
2 brealrl in oloese dapund0uce upon the therapist and not by other
stors in tho chrounolegienl course of recovery? |
e oy o tHdEk 5 ogeid tat 1 owe of the resstud 3608 7)) defiger peried.
b 2uve mpil mlleax L sen! eted; don't lmow how to sgeparate all of
That 18 Yo say, it is chrouological and yet is
therapy; they go hand in hand and I don't know
chew: in any more cleer fasghion - they go

racters idtelved
sy s v, e G

ullte how to separate
cg@ther., |
{
3. . HBELE , do wou coumsider thet your continued duty at the waval%
Cwnsital would have din any way altered the course of Mister
rrestal's acts?
L RO Tol = e

"unpredictable mature orf o person with an extreme, impulsive drive
self-destructicon.” e clarify this statement the board would like
to imow if you consider this impulsive drive would be a-constant F

oA
L
:

w

|
zh. @i s LE netad. n Deogter letter that he refers 4o the
|

|
ator or ons of momeantary urge? |
B folt in ister Worrestalts case that tha drive which led 4o his ac q’l

sl elde was a momemtary urge and the grave danger that existed |
vhout wes thet we could never have enough security o protect !
3 LJSL such & flazn o dsnression; for exemnle, had ths entire floori
Luas scresned, the fire exits offer an opportunity for suileide, or ha
to wished, he slept in a darkened room, he could easzly have cut his
wrist and +the corpsman would never notice it un%ll theifext morning
nrobably, if it were dome under the covers. There wersg. 5¢ many
suicidal opportunities that could not be removed .underiany circum-
¢tauces that this type of impulse was extremely diffioult to deal
‘rn. Thers was nothing in his provious history or behavior to
eate that there would be such an impulsive move, but the pos-
'!vl;bj of 1t was recognized.
5. Q. &.d lister Forrestel listen to the radie?
g, e
& “e Ll Adgter porrestal lisda: to the broadeasts of the commentea tors
: Lot oyou wreviously weationed? ‘
Bl o
Te . oo otiis infornedticn o8 jiven by the commentators transmitted to

Caoter Porrestal by vou tnd i so, o what degree? |

A. e lind access to it thruugh the newspapers and he and I discussed what
he wwd read but I can't say how much I transmitted to him. He had frs
access to lncoming mail, newspapers, books and there was a great desl
o comunent about one of the brosdeests which oocéurred afber iister
Iforrestal's admission to +the hospital., The commeant was edltorial and |
in various syndlca sed columms, |

¥,

Neither the recorder nor the members of the board desired,frdﬁhar t0 examine
this witness. =L i

1y fur ther
the investi-
n‘there—

The board informed the witmess that he was privileged %o make
statement covering anything relating to the subject matﬁar fohit
gation wid ch he thought should be a matter of record in ‘dbnnec

The witnecss sald that he had nothing furthsr 4o s tate.
The wiiiess was duly warned aud oithdrew.

i e
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izhed, all psriies thereto withdrawing.

> osad mnture delibercdion, 4he board finds as follows:

Sk b oW BAUTS.

P L the body found on the ledge outside of room three eighty-four of

buiiliag oxze of the wational liawal ledical Qenter at one~fifty a.m.

g ronounced dead at one [iffy-five a.m., Sunday, Hay 22, 1940, was
thet of the late Jamos V. Forrestal, a patisnt on the

EROL e g
Leurupsychintric Service of the U, S. Savwal liospital, Hational Havwal

Tacloesl Jenter, Dethesds, [aryland.

oy

mee it lgte James V. Sorvestal died on or about lay 22, 19L9, a % the
“wasl sdaval liedical denter, Bethwesda, warylasnd, as a result of
muliiple, extrene, received :an:Lden_L to a fall. from a high

building cne, Jational Bawval iledical sr‘ter,

-
i el S
point in the tower,
Bethesda, laryland.

That the behavior of the decsased during +the pericd.of h:L stay in khe

hosyitael preceding his death was indlcatlive of & mental dspresmon.

he Bresihenil apug L.:-r'r.:mu‘bions in the conduct of the case were in
agreoent vith accepted psychiatric practice and aow,mnerLSurats wilth +the
evideut s ga’-uu or the \acht at all times.

That the death was not caused in any menmer by the intent, fault,
neg"-"beuce or inefficiency of any person or persouns in the naval
service or connected therewith.

e,

Captaiz « Medical Corp:

e O %y (Ret.) hcotlve, Senior member,

2 T

R iy
Tﬂﬁ_—-l— -
captaln Jedioal ‘Torps,
U. 8. Havv. ménber.

) y dedlcal Ci/i'ps,
U. S. savy, membgr, /[

wonplanaer ) : I,‘,‘Iedloallfcorps, —
U. S. Havy, member. .
~7

/LT enant {oraand =
i#dical Corps, U..S. Navv, member..

i
Corps, U. S. davy, recordef.

arche.

Ti2utemt Wedical Service

|
|
|
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. safeguard him.

NATTONAL NAVAL MEDICAL CENTER
BETHESDA, MAHYLAND
OFFICE OF THE MEDICAL OFFICER IN COMMAND

June 1, 19L%

~ review of the evidence in the foregoing investigation into the facts.
and circumstances leading up to the death of thes late Mr, James V. Forrestal

reveals:

That the deceased was admitted as a patient to ths U. S. Naval Hos- %

pital, Bethesda, Maryland, on April 2, 1949. That at the time of his ad-
mission to the hospltal his condltlon was ‘what was described by the medical‘

officer in charge of his case, and who is a qualified psychiatrist of some E
gighteen years of experience in that specialty, as "obviously quite severe—;
1y depressed" and "exhausted, physically". !

|

Because of his mental and physical condition, an immediate twenty- f

four hour a day watch consisting of constant surveillance was established |

over the patient, adeguate orders for the patient's safety were issued, and
a regime of medicinal therapeutics commenced; the latter to alleviate his
depressed CGnd;thn and to build up his phy51cal strength. The patient's

response to ‘the treatment was considered to be good, theough of & gradual f

and lvlegular natura.

|
|
;
|

During the period of the deceased's hospitalization, the psychiatrist
in c¢harge of his case, Captain C . MC, U. S. Navy, talked 1
with him concerning the question .of self destruction. It was fully real- )
ized by Captain and his chief assistant, Captain . i
MC, U. S. Naval Reserve, a qualified psychiatrist of some twenty-nine |
years of experience in his specialty, that the dsceased considered suicide l
at times and that a patient with that type of disability is. a potential }
suicide. In view of this knowledge on the part of these two medical of- i
ficers, adequate instructions were issued to personnel assigned to the
constant attendance of the patient as to measures to be carrisd out to

The record further shows that on April 26, 1949, the restrictive regu~
lations in force 1n the deceased's case were eased but that it was discov—
ered that his condition had not improved to the extent to Justify such ‘
action; therefore, on April 29th an order was lssued to the.attendants on
watch to the effect that they must stay in the room with ths patient at all'
times, for as late as that date it was considered that the patient still ,
entertalned suicidal tendencies at times, However, the patient's condition
showed an abrupt change for the better and on May lst because of this im-
provement, the close survelllance was relaxed during the afternoon watch.
About iay 5th the close watch was further relaxed, the patient's door was
allowed to be left open, on May 7th the day watch'was relaxed to the extent

that the watch was not required to remain in the patient!s room at all
times. The patient’s condition continued to shOW'furthef" T
the extent that it was not necessary to administer sedatlve ‘
provide relaxation and sleep. Toward the middle of ng the;patient's con—
dition had improved to the extent that it was considered that "He was very
close to well, actually” and that only about thirty days more of hospital~
ization would be required. About May 18th, due to the improvement in his
case, he was encouraged to see and talk w1th people and:to extend hig ac~
tivities, At this time it was considered that the patient'ha Fogressed
to the point where a well calculated risk of suicide was ad ey
taken as a part of his treatment, to prevent the fixing.
mental stigma in and 1rreparable damage to the patient'S'”
him in making & complete recovery. The patient was allgWe,
telephone and to make other contacts, within a clearly deflne

operation.

v

‘éﬁhere-of '




